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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present our annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2023.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as
plastic cloth and shaft. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group’s revenue decreased to approximately RMB294 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 16.9% in comparison to
that of 2022. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded a loss for the year of approximately RMB93 million, as
compared with loss of approximately RMB29 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The revenue of the Group’s POE umbrellas products decreased by
approximately RMB24 million, or 28.9%, from approximately RMB83
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB59 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The revenue of the Group’s nylon umbrellas products increased by
approximately RMB41 million, or 56.9%, from approximately RMB73
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB114 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The revenue of the Group’s umbrella parts products decreased
by approximately RMB77 million, or 38.9%, from approximately
RMB198 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB121 million for the year ended 31 December
2028.
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Our principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen our position
as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan market and
on our own branded umbrella products in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) market, and increase our market share in existing
markets such as Hong Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all the
colleagues for their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would
also like to thank all the shareholders, customers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

Huang Weniji
Chairman

Fujian Province, the PRC, 28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as plastic
cloth and shaft. The Group manufactures products at the production
site located in Dongshi Town and Yonghe Town of Jinjiang City in
Fujian Province of the PRC.

The Group principally engaged in selling POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts on export basis to the Group’s
overseas customers which accounted for approximately 77% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
Group exported its POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella
parts to markets such as Japan, Hong Kong, Republic of Korea,
Taiwan, Spain and Cambodia. The Group’s overseas customers
would usually provide the Group with their design and specification.
The Group’s sales personnel would closely communicate with the
Group’s customers. Depending on the specific needs of these
overseas customers, the Group’s sales personnel would put forward
the Group’s suggestions for modifications to design and specification
from its research and development staff to the Group’s customers
for their consideration. When customers decide on the final design
and specification, the Group would make samples and provide to
the Group’s customers for approval.

For domestic market, the Group sold its POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts to the Group’s customers in the PRC
which accounted for approximately 23% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group’s domestic
customers would usually place orders with the Group from selection
of its existing POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas products which
are all designed by its research and development team. The Group
also sell some of its POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas under the
Group’s Jicheng (%X ) brand through sales to our non-trading
customers such as supermarkets.

The Group also manufactured umbrella parts as an ancillary products
mainly for the Group’s existing customers, both overseas and
domestic customers, some of which also purchased POE umbrellas
and nylon umbrellas from the Group.

The Group’s new business strategy is to shift business focus from
developing upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution
network and brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the
Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher margins.

To diversify its business and explore potential business opportunities,
the Group is exploring and developing business opportunities and
projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The revenue decreased from approximately RMB354 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB294 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023, representing a decrease
of approximately 16.9%, which was mainly attributable to the
decreased demand for the POE umbrellas and umbrella parts.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales decreased from approximately RMB319 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB273 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023, representing a decrease of
approximately 14.4%. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
corresponding decrease in direct materials costs and direct labour
costs were in line with the Group’s decrease in revenue during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the gross profit decreased by
approximately RMB14 million, or 40.0%, from approximately RMB35
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB21 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The gross
profit margin decreased from approximately 9.9% for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately 7.3% for the year ended 31
December 2023.

OTHER INCOME AND NET GAIN

The Group recorded other income and net gain of approximately
RMB5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared
with other income and net gain of approximately RMB19 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. It was mainly due to the
decrease in exchange gain of approximately RMB9 million during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately RMB8
million or 36.4% from approximately RMB22 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB14 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWED T

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB11 million,
or 25.0%, from approximately RMB44 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB33 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the decrease in staff costs of approximately RMB10
million during the year ended 31 December 2023.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs remained stable as approximately RMB3 million and
RMB4 million for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a loss
for the year of approximately RMB93 million, as compared with loss
of approximately RMB29 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. The decline in the financial performance of the Group were
mainly due to the impairment loss recognised for trade receivables
and other receivables of approximately RMB69 million during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank balances and cash
(including fixed time deposits of approximately RMB23 million (2022:
approximately RMB24 million)) amounted to approximately RMB36
million (2022: approximately RMB41 million), and short-term bank
borrowings amounted to RMB73 million (2022: approximately
RMB68 million). The annual interest rates of loans ranged from 3.4%
10 4.6%.

The Group’s current ratio increased from 2.9 times as at 31
December 2022 to 2.2 times as at 31 December 2023, which
was calculated based on the total current assets divided by the
total current liabilities. As at 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio
was approximately 45% (2022: approximately 31%), which was
calculated based on the bank borrowings and bills payables to the
percentage of the total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2023, the inventories were approximately
RMB115 million (2022: approximately RMB132 million). The inventory
turnover days were increased from approximately 149 days in 2022
to approximately 165 days in 2023, which was calculated based on
the average of the beginning and ending balance of inventories for
the year divided by cost of sales for the year, and multiplied by 365
days.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2023, the trade receivables were approximately
RMB93 million (2022: approximately RMB149 million). The Group
generally allows an average credit period of 90 days to its trade
customers. The average trade receivables turnover day was
increased from approximately 138 days in 2022 to approximately
150 days in 2023, which was calculated based on the average of
the beginning and ending trade receivable balances for the year
divided by revenue for the year and multiplied by 365 days.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2023, the trade and bills payables were
approximately RMB45 million (2022: approximately RMB59 million).
The Group’s suppliers typically grant us a credit terms ranging
from 30 days to 120 days. The average trade and bills payables
turnover days were slightly decreased from approximately 49 days
in 2022 to approximately 70 days in 2023, which was calculated
based on the average of the beginning and ending of trade and bills
payable balance of the year divided by cost of sales of the year and
multiplied by 365 days.

PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

RMB33.1 million of other receivables represent an advance to an
independent third party (a former wholly-owned subsidiary which
the disposal was completed on 24 June 2022, please refer to
the announcement dated 17 June 2022 for more details) which is
unsecured and interest-free. The amount was fully repaid during the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWED T

The Company considers that the terms of the advance are fair and
reasonable. The Company is of the view that the advance would
be able to maintain stable long-term commercial relationship as a
domestic semi-finished product approved supplier to the Group.
We believe that the domestic supply of these materials is currently
satisfactory and we have not experienced any material shortage or
delay in the supply of these raw materials. Having ascertained that
we were able to comply with the stringent standards in relation to
product quality, production process and environmental compliance.
We believe that our stable product quality with a stable relationship
with our suppliers and our ability to deliver a wide range of products
to our customers have enabled us to earn recurring business.
The Company considers that the advance is in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole and also meet the group’s
business strategy.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business of the Group is subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties. The following is a summary of some of the principal
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s business:

- The Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations may be affected by the loss of key customers.

It is important for the Group to maintain close and mutually
beneficial relationships with the Group’s key overseas and
domestic customers. The Group’s revenue is also subject
to the Group’s customers’ business, product quality, sales
strategy, industry conditions and the overall economic market
environments. Any significant reduction of sales to or loss
of any of the Group’s key customers could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

- The Group may be subject to certain risks, such as political
and economic instability and fluctuations in currency rates
of foreign currencies, associated with selling our umbrella
products to Japan, the PRC and other overseas customers.

- Any change in market demand levels for the Group’s umbrella
products in Japan, the PRC and in the Group’s other export
destinations may have a significant effect on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations. In
particular, the Group is affected by changes in the economic
condition of Japan, a major destination of our products, and
the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

- As the Group’s sales are primarily made in US dollar, RMB
and Japanese Yen whereas the Group’s purchases of
materials and payment of wages and salaries to the PRC
workers are in RMB and US dollar, therefore, the Group is
exposed to exchange rate risk. In addition, the Group is
exposed to the risks associated with the currency conversion
and exchange rate system in the PRC.

- Fluctuations in prices of raw materials or unstable supply of
raw materials could negatively impact our operations and
may adversely affect our profitability.

The prices of most of the Group’s raw materials generally
follow the price trends of, and vary with, market conditions.
Supplies of these raw materials may also be subject to
a variety of factors that are beyond our control, including
but not limited to market shortages, suppliers’ business
interruptions, government control, weather conditions and
overall economic conditions, all of which may have an impact
on their respective market prices from time to time.

- The Group may experience a shortage of labour or our labour
costs may continue to increase.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material capital
commitment (2022: nil). As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities (2022: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB9 million
(2022: approximately RMB10 million) and the fixed time deposits
with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB23 million (2022:
approximately RMB24 million) were pledged to banks for bank
borrowings and bills payables.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 449
employees (2022: 571 employees). The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group was set up by the Board based on their
experience, qualifications and competence. Other employees’
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
funds, and social insurance together with housing provident funds to
its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWED T

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND CAPITAL ASSETS

On 17 June 2022, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company - Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Company Limited and
an independent third party entered into the sales and purchases
agreement, to sell, 100% equity interest in an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary — Jinjiang Jicheng Light Industry Co., Ltd., which were
engaged in manufacturing and sales of umbrella parts in PRC, at a
consideration of RMB30,000,000. The disposal of a subsidiary was
completed on 24 June 2022.

Except for the above, the Group had no significant investments,
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and capital assets
during the year.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen
its position as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan
market and its own branded umbrella products in the PRC market,
and increase its market share in the existing markets such as Hong
Kong, Cambodia and Republic of Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. The Board comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The Company has
adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date with the following deviations:

Under paragraph A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should
be separated and should not be performed by the same person.
Mr. Huang is currently the Chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer who is primarily responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The Directors consider that
vesting the roles of the Chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer in the same person facilitates the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and decision making, and maximises the
effectiveness of the Group’s operation. The Directors also believe
that the presence of three independent non-executive Directors
provides added independence to our Board. The Directors will
review the structure from time to time and consider an adjustment
should it become appropriate.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meeting of the Company. Mr.
Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being the independent
non-executive Directors, did not attend the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 29 June 2023 due to their other business
engagements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries
have been made to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code during the year.
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BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tso Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit
Ying, Winnie.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst Directors. Their biographical details and (where
applicable) their family relationships are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
29 to 30 in the annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their
role and functions and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors are available on the Company’s website.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments, investment
policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for implementing its business
strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of senior
management. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board also reviews the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties. Independent
professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisation. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction which includes provision of key guidelines,
documents and publications relevant to their roles, responsibilities
and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the Company’s structure,
businesses, risk management and other governance practices
and meeting with other fellow Directors so as to help the newly
appointed Directors familiarize with the management, business and
governance policies and practices of the Company, and ensure that
they have a proper understanding of the operations and businesses
of the Company.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

General
Meeting

ETN- E=

(number of mestings attended/number of meetings held during respective director’s tenure)
(REZARBEIESIRU/ BTEERE)

meetings
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Board committee committee committee
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EHRZERS

meetings

FHESE

meetings

REZEE
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Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Huang Wenji BENREE 0/1
Mr. Yang Guang BrEE 0/1
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang WEERE 0/1
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ERIERE 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES

Mr. Tso Sze Wai ERERE 11
Mr. Yang Xuetai BEAEE 0/1
Ms. Leg Kit Ying, Winnie FREELT 0/1

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect
of potential legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors also
understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating in any suitable training or relevant
materials reading in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has received from each Director a confirmation
of their participation in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials on the topics
related to corporate governance and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of
the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Each Board Committee has its defined and written terms of
reference approved by the Board covering its duties, powers and
functions. Their terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.
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All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources

to discharge their duties,

including access to management or

professional advice if considered necessary.

U]

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board by providing an independent view on the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tso Sze Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lee
Kit Ying, Winnie and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to review the annual and
interim results of the Group and make recommendations to
the Board and the management in respect of the Group’s
financial reporting and internal control procedures. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed, with the management and the Company’s auditor,
the Group’s significant internal controls and financial matters
in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written terms of
reference and made relevant recommendations to the Board.
The Audit Committee’s review covered the audit scope and
findings, external auditor’s independence and performance,
the Group’s accounting principles and practices, the Listing
Rules and statutory compliance, connected transactions,
internal controls, risk management, financial reporting matters
(including the interim and annual financial reports for the
Board’s approval) and the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function as well as their training programmes
and budget. It also reviewed this Corporate Governance
Report and an internal control review report on the Company
prepared by an independent advisor.
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(In)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, reviewing the terms of remuneration packages,
determining the award of bonuses and considering the grant
of options under the share option scheme of the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings to review the remuneration
policy, share options granted under the share option scheme
of the Company, remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference.

The Company has adopted a director remuneration policy,
it sets out the general principles which guide the Group to
deal with the remuneration matters. This remuneration policy
aims to provide a fair market level of remuneration to retain
and motivate high quality directors, senior management of
the Group and attract experienced people of high calibre to
oversee the business and development of the Group.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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(i) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Xuetai
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai
and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition
of the Board, including its structure, size and diversity at
least annually to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Group. It is also responsible to consider and
recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession planning
of Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined
below) when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will review the
Board Diversity Policy (as defined below), so as to develop and
review measurable objectives for the implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below) and to monitor the progress
on achieving these objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, two meetings was
held by the Nomination Committee to, among other things,
review the structure, size and composition of the board, assess
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, formulate the board diversity policy and recommend
to the board for approval. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations required for the positions. All candidates must
be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the
Board for approval.
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The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and to consider
the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election
at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board is maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board on 23 January 2015 in compliance with provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss the overall
strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial performance,
and to approve interim and annual results and other significant
matters. For regular meetings, Board members are given at least
14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting papers are sent to
Directors not less than 3 days before the relevant meeting is held.
Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
to include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at board meetings and abstain from voting in favour of the related
board resolutions as appropriate.
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Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the board meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are followed.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a person
may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in general
meeting or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as
additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

Mr. Yang Xuetai, being independent non-executive Director has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Each of
Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie have entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year.

Mr. Yang Guang and Mr. Lin Zhenshuang, being executive Directors
and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, independent non-executive Director
will be subject to retirement and re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s articles
of association.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 23 January 2015. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. While all Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Yuen Wai Keung, a member of the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries, who is an employee of the Company as
the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reported to the
Board from time to time. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures,
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the year under review, Mr. Yuen Wai Keung has taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training and has fulfilled
the requirement pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is wiling to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The
risk management and internal control system are design to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function
to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group. There is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal control system has
been identified by the external advisory firm for the year ended
31 December 2023.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2023,
the risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
were reasonably effective and adequate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future and not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the
Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.
The responsibilities of Elite Partners CPA Limited, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2023 by band is set out below:
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Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 1
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 1% 4 R i EA

During the year, the Group engaged external auditor to perform audit
and non-audit services amounted to approximately RMB524,000
and RMBnil respectively. The non-audit services included primarily
ESG reporting advisory, internal control consultancy and reviewing
certain financial information.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTICORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has established the whistle blowing policy which
allows all employees and independent third parties, including
customers, suppliers and contractors, to report any possible
improprieties, misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in matters
of financial reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board
or the Audit Committee anonymously. The Group will handle the
reports and complaints with care and will treat the whistle-blower’s
concerns fairly and properly. The Audit Committee has the overall
responsibility for the whistleblowing policy but has delegated
day-today responsibility for overseeing and implementing it to a
designated officer. Any person who is found to have victimized or
retaliated against those who have raised concerns under this policy
will subject to disciplinary sanctions.

The Group has adopted anti-corruption policy on a zero-tolerance
basis for any form of corruption, including bribery and extortion,
fraud and money laundering, and promise to operate our business
in an honest, ethical and creditable manner. The policies are revised
in due course and all Directors and employees are reminded with
its requirement from time to time. In particular, the Group has
established a code of conduct and stipulated in the compliance
manual of the Company. Additionally, the Group has implemented
an effective internal manual on inside information or price sensitive
information and has provided separate channels for the reporting of
any suspected business irregularities, fraud and corruption.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report for
more details.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination
of inside information (“Policy”) which sets out the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff
of the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of
inside information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing
the relevant information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable
all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Under the Company’s articles of association,
the shareholder communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

U]

(I

PARTICIPATION AT GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of
the shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings
and circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be
sent to the shareholders no less than 20 business days before
the meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors.

ENQUIRIES AND PROPOSALS TO THE BOARD

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance
matters to the Board and Board Committees at the general
meetings or providing written notice of such proposals for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated
at Room 905, 9/F, San Toi Building. 137-139 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong or via email to
enquiry@jcumbrella.com.
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(i) CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room
905, 9/F, San Toi Building. 137-139 Connaught Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of
association or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding
procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election
as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out
above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.

The notice of annual general meeting together with the
accompanying circular setting out the relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting
has been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to one vote.
Details of the poll voting procedures are set out in the circular
sent to shareholders prior to the meeting and explained at
the commencement of the meeting. Voting results are posted
on the Company’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.
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(IV) PROCEDURES FOR PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS
A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the articles of association of
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company. The period for lodgement of the notices required
will commerce no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company by special
resolution passed on 29 June 2023 and effective on the same day.
Save as disclosed, there was no change in the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSNEBEAERBREFE

DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji ( =X %) , aged 55, is the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Huang was appointed as a Director on 12 June 2014 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 25 September 2014. He
founded our Group in May 1996 and is responsible for the overall
management, strategic development and major decision-making
of our Group. Mr. Huang is a Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Huang
completed his secondary education in the PRC in July 1987.

Mr. Yang Guang (15 3¢) , aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group in November
2007 as financial controller as well as secretary to the board of
directors of Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd. (i8R R ¥H

A A]) (“Fujian Jicheng”). Mr. Yang has been the deputy general
manager of Fujian Jicheng since November 2010, and is responsible
for supervising our Group’s production. He worked for A& 5 % 8
A% 17 B BR A &) (Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd.) as finance officer from
November 1999, and was promoted to finance manager in August
2001. He then worked for t&i&)8 &£ B AR A A (Fujan Xunxing
Group Company Limited) as finance manager from May 2002 to
October 2007. Mr. Yang graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics with finance major in July 1994.

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang (# 5 %), aged 45, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group
in August 2001 and is the manager of the international business
department of Jinjiang Jicheng Industry Co., Ltd. (B IE/KETH
fR 2 A]) (“Jinjiang Jicheng”). He is responsible for supervising our
Group’s sales and marketing operations. Mr. Lin graduated from
Huagiao University with a diploma in Japanese Language in June
2000.

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ({27 ) , aged 57, was appointed an
executive Director of the Company on 13 April 2015. He has more
than 10 years’ experience in project management and business
strategic planning. Mr. Chung worked as a production manager
in the field of consumer electronics products for over 5 years and
his responsibilities mainly focused on overseeing the production
process. Mr. Chung is responsible for the strategic planning and
finance of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai (& B %), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 7 October 2016. Mr. Tso
holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce awarded by University of New
South Wales, Australia and a postgraduate diploma in Computing in
the University of Western Sydney, Australia. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20
years of experience in accounting, corporate finance and corporate
secretarial matters. He is also independent non-executive directors of
China Asia Valley Group Limited (Stock Code: 63), Hop Fung Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2320) and Willas-Array Electronics
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 854). He is also an independent
non-executive directors of two companies the shares of which
are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange, namely Net Pacific
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: SGX:5QYY), since July 2020
and KTL Global Limited (Stock Code: SGX:EB7), since June 2020
and subsequently resigned on August 2021. He was the company
secretary of China Carbon Neutral Development Group Limited
(Stock Code: 1372). He had held senior management positions in a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Mr. Yang Xuetai (#5522 KX), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 January 2015. Mr. Yang
graduated from China Academy of Art with a bachelor degree in
industrial design in July 1998 and a master degree in art in January
2010. He has been working for the art faculty of The Huagiao
University as assistant professor since 2010. He had also been a
visiting scholar of Tunghai University in Taiwan for five months in
2012,

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (4% 3%) , aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 August 2015. Ms. Lee
holds a Postgraduate certificate in Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong and Diploma in Accounting from
The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of experience in finance and
administration. She has worked for various foreign and multi-national
organisation.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Liangping (2R ) , aged 55, is the manager of the Group’s
research and development department. He joined our Group in
2000 as manager of the production department of Jinjiang Jicheng.
He has later become the manager of the Group’s research and
development department and is responsible for supervising our
Group’s product design, and research and development operations.
Mr. Liu completed his secondary education in the PRC in June 1986.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and sale of
umbrellas and the relevant products. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review in respect of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the material factors underlying its
results and financial position, principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, as well as the Group’s environmental policies, are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 12 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
committed adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. We strive to minimize
our environmental impact by energy saving, recycling of used
papers, office supplies and other materials. For details, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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RELATIONS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with competitive remuneration
package and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills to attract and retain our employees. The Board
reviews the remuneration package of our employees annually and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the prevailing market
practices. The Group also adopted share options scheme to reward
the contribution of the employees as an incentive.

The Board also strives to develop long-standing and good
relationships with our customers and suppliers in order to achieve
the Group’s long-term goals.

During the year, there was no significant dispute between the Group
and our business partners.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, aggregate sales to the
Group’s largest and top five customers accounted for approximately
21% (2022: approximately 37%) and approximately 66% (2022:
approximately 73%), respectively, of the Group’s total Revenue for
the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, aggregate purchases
from the Group’s largest and top five suppliers of raw materials
accounted for approximately 17% (2022: approximately 18%) and
approximately 42% (2022: approximately 48%), respectively, of the
Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s top five customers and
suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 136 of
the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to
135 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in
note 34(B) and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There was no reserve available for distribution to the shareholders of
the Company as at 31 December 2023.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder returns when its
dividend policy considers:

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

° return on equity and other corresponding restrictions of the
Group;

° the Group’s capital requirement and surplus;
o the Group’s liquidity position;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

° other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board will continue to review the Group’s dividend policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period. The payment of
dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable laws
and the Company’s Articles of Association.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group donated approximately RMB52,000
(2022: approximately RMB334,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji

Mr. Yang Guang

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai
Mr. Yang Xuetai
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie

Pursuant to Article 108 and Article 112 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Yang Guang and Mr. Lin Zhenshuang being
executive Directors, and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being independent
non-executive Director shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All the retiring Directors are eligible for re-elections.

During the year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report,
Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth are also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other director of the Company’s
subsidiaries include Mr. Chen Ruixin.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2023.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) which will have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE COMPANY
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Approximately

Number of  percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interests Capacity issued shares shareholding
BT B4
EEpnR EEME =271} ROBE FREIL
Mr. Huang Wenii (Note 1) Long Position Interest in a controlled corporation and 125,030,900 30.31%
beneficial owner
XS (M) HeE REEGEENER REREE A
Mr. Yang Guang Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%
Bt e EnEEA
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%
MEEELE e EnEEA
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%
BRI S A e EnEEA
Mr. Tso Sze Wai Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%
HRELE e EnEEA
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie Long Position Beneficial owner 1,890,000 0.46%
FEELL e EnEEA
Notes: Bt o
1. Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by 1. Jicheng Investment Limited & XX &L £ 2

Mr. Huang Weniji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Weniji is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under
the SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

BEREZES - At RIFEHF R AEEG]
B X E S AR E R Jicheng Investment
Limited P #5 A% 7 fr 85 25 o

fr EXRBEEI RARE AH RBART]
RIBEEZF M B GRHIFI2EAFENE L
AT EL - SIRBIRETRIE S AR 7] R B
XHE BEEENARAIBETBRABR
BES BB EARAR A SHE MR

B (EERFSF LG HRGIEXVER) BB -
RO REEZT T HEEEAED IR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
20234 F 3}

37



38

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at the date of this report, the persons or corporations who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

™

TERRNOEZRAXR

RARE BE AT ATSOAER AR AR
MEREERD T HEERIEFESF B EEHE
XV 2B 52 K35 SR AR A A 7] 3 58 sk A0 &%
RIBFEA LB E 5P EIBCIEEERTFEE
SRR R

Name of Director Nature of interests Capacity
ESHE E8 R E E-27)
Jicheng Investment Limited Long position Beneficial owner
A EnEAA
Mr. Huang Weniji (Note 1) Long position Interest in a controlled

corporation and
beneficial owner

BEX&ERE (HF1) ) RGN EB S N
BERBEAA
Ms. Chen Jieyou (Note 2) Long position Interest of spouse
gt (M5E2) i) (L £
Notes: B3 -
1. Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by 1.

Mr. Huang Weniji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Weniji is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under
the SFO. In addition, Mr. Huang Weniji was granted the options under
the share option scheme of the Company on 14 May 2020.

2. Ms. Chen Jieyou is the spouse of Mr. Huang Wenji and accordingly
is deemed to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Huang Wenji
has interest under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons or corporation having an
interest or short position in shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, except for those
disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no material connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions between the Group and its connected
persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which are subject to
the reporting, announcement and the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office. The
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its Directors and officers.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
confirmation given by Mr. Huang Wenji and Jicheng Investment
Limited, being controlling shareholders (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) of the Company, to ensure their compliance with the
non-competition undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) of the Company dated 3 February 2015.

OTHER UNDERTAKINGS BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders have
also undertaken to indemnify the Group against all actions, claims,
demands, proceedings, costs and expenses, losses and liabilities
whatsoever made, suffered or incurred by the Group arising from (i)
the restructuring and reorganisation undergone by the Group on or
before the date on which the global offering becomes unconditional;
or (i) the Group’s non-compliance with the PRC laws, rules and
regulations as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Business —
Non-compliance” of the Prospectus. No provision has been made
for the above during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

There had been no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 January
2015 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible persons for
their past contributions and attracting and retaining, or otherwise
maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed, full-time
or part-time employees, executive or officers of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any directors or proposed director (including
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. Subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the Board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting; and/or

(ii) grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Board.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of shares to
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of options in excess of 1% limit
shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular by the Company; and
(i) the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share options subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 21
days after the offer date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company'’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the shares on
the date of the offer for the grant, which must be a business day; (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share.

As at the date of this report, the total number of securities available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 41,255,000 shares,
representing 10% the total number of issued shares of the Company.
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(i) the number of options available for grant under the scheme
mandate of the Share Option Scheme at the beginning and the
end of the financial year 2023 (the “FY2023”) were 41,255,000
Shares and 41,255,000 Shares respectively;

(i) the number of shares that may be issued in respect of options
and awards granted under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company during FY2023 divided by the weighted average
number of Shares in issue for FY2023 was approximately
4.6%; and

(i) Taking into consideration that the grant is to provide incentives
or rewards to the grantee, which is critical for the Company’s
future development and growth, the Remuneration Committee
of the Company is of the view that it is not necessary to set
any performance target or clawback mechanism for the grant
of Share Options because such grant could retain high-calibre
employees for the continual operation and development of the
Group. As such, the arrangement is aligned with the purpose
of the Share Option Scheme.

The Remuneration Committee is tasked within its term of reference
to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Following the Consultation
Conclusions on Proposed Amendments to Listing Rules relating
to Share Schemes of Listed Issuers and Housekeeping Rule
Amendment published by the Stock Exchange in July 2022, Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules was amended and became effective from 1
January 2023.
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The following table disclosed movements in the Company’s share ~ FN&RIFFEAR BBIRERREE 2 &
options during the year:

Adjusted
exercise price Outstanding Granted  Exercised during Lapsed Outstanding
Name or category of participants Date of grant Exercise period (HK$)  asat01.01.2023  during the year theyear during the year as at 31.12.2023
R-B==
g@E R-B-ZF T=A

AEE -A-A =t-8

SRELZRARR (Bx) HATE  FRERE  FREAE  FABAX W RATE
(Note 1)
(Cika))

Category: Employees

%7 B8
Employees 12 May 2022 12 May 2022 to 11 May 2024 0.462 88,000 B B - 88,000
(] ZEZZERATCH ZZZZFRATZAE
ZECRFRAT-A
Employees 8 April 2021 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 0.740 18,930,000 - - (18,930,000) -
B8 “Z--EWANA
Employees 10 Apri 2019 10 Apri 2019 to 9 April 2029 0.900 18,750,000 - - - 18,750,000
[E& Z-hnEFMATH ZZ-hEFMATHRE
ZE-AEMANE
37,768,000 - - (18930000  18838,000
Note: BT
1. The exercise price and the number of share options granted has 1. EROERENTEERBMECAR S
been adjusted for the Share Consolidation which was effective on ZEFEELAANBEBKRNEFELFAE-
6 July 2020.
2. 18,750,000 share options to employees granted on 10 April 2019 2. RZZE-—NANFNA+HEFEERZ
were immediately vested at the date of grant. 18,750,00017 f& BR #E i 15 ) B EABI IS 55 88 -
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director of the Company or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong. During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the MPF scheme
and the retire benefit scheme in the PRC that might be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practice.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 28.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring Auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Huang Weniji
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian Province, the PRC, 28 March 2024

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

EEREROIEEINZH

REATAMER BEQTARARARESEK
BES A ZEBAARKE FRELBEBKE
ARAR A S EHERE M & RN kAR
FITEZFEN HARA] - HERRFHE
EAMEARLERNFATARERERR
AEFAEBPB AR SEMEMERD
B REHES (BREREES) BB EAR
BERVRTA9TT »

RIRETE

AEBBREAERNTEESEL2HEATEE
Ko T BR T L R AR 48 0 e BB TR K@ R A2
TAESRELZESHEMEH ERERE -
HE-_Z-_=FR-_FBE-_—_F+=-A=+—
AEFE AEBAFERAESTE P E
RRBFFTEIE T ER LW 2 3 7T B
RBRIKIR A HFRKF -

EXRER
AREBAREMEEERTR A D AH
CEEAEARNEIBEBAN L EE AR
o

B B B

BIERIZBMATERETMEEMAR
RAZRFRBNEERRBFAEG LIS -

EEEED
FRERPTEF
BX&E

R ERE —E-_mME=A=-+/\H

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
20234 F 3}

45



46

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

elite
= partners

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 135,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matter
BAREVSER

Allowance for impairment assessment of trade and other receivables and
loan receivable

BERAEMEBERRENARBERERREFLRE

The Group’s trade and other receivables and loan receivable
accounted for approximately 29% of the Group’s total assets.
The assessment of impairment of trade and other receivables and
loan receivable under the expected credit loss (‘ECL”) model is
considered to be a matter of most significance as it requires the
application of judgement and use of subjective assumptions by
management.

ESENESREMBRRENARERERG ESELEED
29% HNFEZEEEERAABRERFEHRBR WREBEREE
BE ([TEREEBE])EAFTHE S R HEA YA R EWRE
R BERRIEEREE 2 F1H -

Management performed periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables and loan receivable and the
sufficiency of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different debtors, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing and amount
of realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going relationships
with the relevant debtors. Management also considered forward
looking information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances in order to estimate the ECL for the
impairment assessment.
ERERBTIREHBAZGEERR BEAERE BRESHENRR
REEFRBE2EREFRHRARSEURERABEEANSERRE
SER HE 5 K H A FEYRIA LA K W E 512 B U E M KO E
BEOTEMHETEATGE - BEENZRUETVETPEESR
BRI W 2 AT E R A EHRIEN 2 TR EEEE -

18 3 % BLAT R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANEREEBERELREHEZARX

Our major audit procedures in relation to
impairment assessment of the trade and other
receivables and loan receivable included the
following:

Bt E 5 R H M EUGRIEAREWRE R
BETEATHNEFEERRRFTEEUNTEIE:

o Understood the process internal controls;
TERAE SR

° Tested on a sample basis the ageing of
receivables at year end;

ORI S F R IE YRR MR R

o Checked on a sample basis the
settlement subsequent to the financial
year end to the receivables; and
DA 77 i & 50 B A 2 48 SR & U
RIEMEEFR &

° Assessed the appropriateness of the ECL

provisioning methodology, examining the
key data inputs on a sample basis to
assess their accuracy and completeness,
and challenging the assumptions,
including both historical and forward-
looking information, used to determine
the expected credit losses.
ARG EEERE T ENES T
NS AT A E A BURNTEE
EHMERTEY WERANREEED
EEFRNBR (BRELLATELE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chow Ka Li with Practising Certificate number
PO7809.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 23, YF Life Tower
33 Lockhart Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBmRkEMtEE KR L

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

2023 2022
—Eg2-= —EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Revenue U = 8 294,467 353,948
Cost of sales & AR (273,075) (318,582)
Gross profit EF 21,392 35,366
Other income and net gain H A A R U 255 58 8 4,656 19,026
Impairment loss recognised in respect  Ft1E B S BB EHER
of allowances for credit losses, FEEE kD
net of reversal (68,696) (9,254)
Selling and distribution expenses HE MDA (14,450) (22,050)
Administrative expenses THR X (32,562) (43,775)
Finance costs BF 75 B AR 10 (3,045) (3,954)
Loss before tax BB ATEE (92,705) (24,641)
Income tax expense FriSfim X 11 (46) (4,792)
Loss for the year attributable to KABREBEAEEFEANER
owners of the Company 12 (92,751) (29,433)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 Mz
ltem that will not be reclassified to TeEHNHEEEE AR
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising BREMBRREEZ
on translation of financial statements PE 5 =% 99 2,172
Total comprehensive expense VNN RN ()
for the year attributable to FRNEEMALEE
owners of the Company (92,652) (27,261)
Loss per share BRERE
Basic (RMB) HA (ARE) 13 (2248)cents%  (8.02) cents H
Diluted (RMB) #E (ARE) 13 (2248)cents s (8.02) cents &

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PESERIERAR AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI R

As at 31 December 2028 A —E =4+ _-_A=+—H

2023 2022
—g—-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AERETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE N R 17 48,898 46,308
Right-of-use assets ERAREEE 18 12,587 13,123
Fixed time deposits TEHF R 24 5,000 5,000
Prepayments BT IE 22 - 6,710
66,485 71,141
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 115,366 132,269
Financial assets at fair value through EAVEFAER
profit or loss HEmEE 20 7,779 4,245
Trade receivables B 5 IR 21 92,925 148,571
Prepayment and other receivables TR BOE N H M E YR 22 58,475 65,598
Loan receivable U E TR 23 10,263 10,838
Fixed time deposits EHFE R 24 17,673 19,207
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNMES 24 13,094 16,571
315,575 397,299
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables B S BN FIEREMNER 25 45,041 59,455
Accruals, other payables FERTER - HiEARIER
and contract liabilities AHEaE 26 21,929 6,290
Bank borrowings HRITE R 27 73,390 68,100
Tax payable FET IR 2,102 2,468
142,462 136,313
Net current assets RBEEZE 173,113 260,986
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAEE 239,598 332,127
Non-current liability EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B & 28 - 315
Net assets EEFE 239,598 331,812

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2023 R —ZE-=+_-HF=+—H

2023 2022

—E2-= —EF=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Capital and reserves EXRFHE

Share capital % < 29 10,818 10,818
Reserves ] 228,780 320,994
Total equity R 239,598 331,812

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2024 and are signed
on its behalf by:

HAEMBBRRERESFEN_ZE_MF=H
ZHNBHETRETE WHANATRERE
S

Huang Weniji
BENE
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PESERIERAR AR

Yang Guang
Bk
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE - E - =F+-_A=+—HIFE

Share
Share Share  Translation Statutory option Other Merger Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
BRE
BE  RGEE EXRE AERE M HitRf AHEE REBEN  EREE
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ) T ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETE T
(note (a)) (note (b)) )
(HE@) (D)
As at 1 January 2022 RZZ--%-f-H 7,833 135,933 3,501 41,609 12,854 536 81,521 32419 316,206
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (2043Y (20433
Exchange differences arising on ~~~ B HEXAEEL Y
tranglation of financial ERER
statements - - 2,172 - - - - - 2,172

Total comprenensive income/ ER2EARA/ (H%)

(expense) for the year BE - - 2,172 - - - - (29433 (27,261)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERRTHE - - - 803 - - - (803) -
Contrioution from shareholders RRTE - - - - - 34 - - 34
Issue of new shares BOERK 1,649 17,444 - - - - - - 19,093
Grant of share options R BRE - - - - 4419 - - - 4419
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - - 6] - - 3 -
Exercise of share options TieBRE 1,336 24,017 - - (6,032) - - - 19,321
Reversal of statutory reserve LE-HHBARR

appropriation upon disposal of BEZEREEN

a subsidiary - - - (19,528) - - - 19,528 -

As at 31 December 2022 and RZBZZ%+Z4

as at 1 January 2023 Zt+-BR-E-Z=F
—-A-H 10,818 177,39 5,673 22,884 11,238 510 81,521 21,714 331,812
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (92,751) (92,751)
Exchange differences arising MBREREEEY
on translation of financial EXES
statements - - 9 - - - - - 9

Total comprehensive income/ ER2EARA/ (A%)

(expense) for the year ficke) - - 9 - - - - (92,751) (92,652)
Contrioution from shareholders RETE - - - - - 438 - - 438
Lapse of share options BRERM - - - - (5,278) - - 5278 -
As at 31 December 2023 RZBZZ%

+ZA=1-H 10,818 171,304 5,172 22,884 5,960 1,008 81,521 (65,759) 239,598

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 55
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERSER

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

Notes:

(@)

CHINA
E%

Share premium represents the excess of consideration received for
issue of shares over the corresponding par value of the issued shares.
The application of the share premium account is governed by the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.

Translation reserve refers to exchange differences arising for translating
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.

The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable and the transfer to this
reserve is determined by the board of directors in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). This reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses
and increase capital upon approval from the relevant government
authorities.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for each period
is determined by spreading the fair value of the share options over the
relevant vesting period (if any) and is recognised in other operating
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a result
of the reorganisation as fully explained in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” in the section headed “History and Corporate
Structure” of the prospectus of the Company dated 3 February 2015
and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
BAERA R AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E-= —EF--
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH2HERE
Loss before tax B A ES 18 (92,705) (24,641)
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs B #5 AN 3,045 3,954
Bank interest income HRITHFEWA (1,308) (4,797)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y WE REFEITE
equipment 4,540 4,613
Loan interest income B B (1,049) 417)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 536 731
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEEBBERERRZ
allowance of credit loss model, WAEEE - kR B E
net of reversal 68,696 9,254
Loss on financial assets at fair value RATEFAEENS R
through profit or loss BEZEE 382 4,863
Loss on disposal of property, LEME KER
plant and equipment Bl R 383 327
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMRBA R 2 W - (5,056)
Equity-settled share-based EREE ARG B
payment expenses A 2 FAX - 4,419
Operating cash flows before LEEEER
movements in working capital ZIRERSRE (17,480) (6,750)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL(Em) 16,903 (8,119)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 MW SRIB I N (18,807) (51,267)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayment and TE A IR I H A FE Y IR
other receivables A, (38n) 13,585 (38,280)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BATER AER
through profit or loss B & B & E L N (3,782) (2,837)
(Decrease)/increase in trade B RAZIEREMNERE
and bills payables CRd) / (3Ehn) (14,414) 37,161
Increase in accruals, other payables and FEETER - HaERFHIER
contract liabilities SR BEEM 15,622 29,297
Cash used in operations KEEB AR S (8,373) (40,795)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMSH (727) (4,404)
Net cash used in operating activities KEREFTARG 5 (9,100) (45,199)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERITMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

2023
e =

— =

RMB’000
AR®T T

2022

—E=-=

RMB’000
ARB T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEZHZRERE
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  WEEME - E M & (803) (3,010)
Placement of fixed time deposits 7 HUE HifF 3R (37,955) (38,069)
Withdrawal of fixed time deposits REUE BiE R 39,489 72,576
Bank interest received BYER 1T B 1,308 4,797
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE &

plant and equipment B2 FT1S R - 26
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary HEKIB ARG ZRERAFEE - 29,843
Payment of contingent consideration payable 3z < E{~ sl A K (B - (21,528)
Repayment of/(advance to) loan receivable FEWEFER (R 1,259 (12,443)
Net cash generated from investing activities RETHMBHELSTFE 3,298 32,192
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHRERE

Proceeds from issues of shares BT TS FRIE - 19,093

Proceeds from exercising of share options TP RS AR EFTIS R - 19,321

Proceeds from new bank borrowings FERITE RIS IR 73,390 71,900

Repayment of bank borrowings EEBRITHER (68,100) (81,450)

Interest paid EENEESS (3,045) (3,954)

Contribution from shareholders BETE 438 34
Net cash generated from financing activities REETBMEBESFEE 2,683 24,944
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRREeEEY

cash equivalents (RA) /EinFEE (3,119) 11,937
Cash and cash equivalents at BEHIZEER

the beginning of the reporting period REeEEY 16,571 2,478
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEE RSB (358) 2,156
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of BEFRZEER

the reporting period ReZEEY
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 13,094 16,571

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PESERIERAR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
12 June 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
is Jicheng Investment Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liabilities and is
ultimately controlled by Mr. Huang Weniji (‘Mr. Huang”).

The address of the registered office is Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The address of the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is Room 904, Loon Kee Building,
275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is
engaged in investment holding while the principal subsidiaries
are principally engaged in manufacture and sales of umbrellas
and the relevant products.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) since the principal subsidiaries are
operating in RMB environment and the functional currency of
these subsidiaries is RMB.

— R & K
ARARZE—NFANA+ZHREA
EREBNFETHRERS MK LA
BEBRARBERNDREBHERS
FIBR AR (B £ HHERE
fi% A &) A& Jicheng Investment Limited * 3%
NANEBEZHE ([RBEXHES])
AR ZAERARBERENELE
(TERAE]) B IRIEH -

o 8% =5 B2 Hb ik & Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands ° Zx
NEINBEREZ FELEEMBLNBERE
B R2755R BERC RN E904% AN R At
EREER MEEMBRAREENSE
BERIHENERARAER-

ARmzheeE®rET ([Bx]) -#
REERBRANRARE(TARE])
REKELETENBRARZYEERR
ARE  BFAMBHRERAARBZS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(A)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual period beginning on 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and February
2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 12

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PESERIERAR AR

Insurance Contracts

Initial Application of
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9
- Comparative Information

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(A)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(continuedq)

Change in accounting policy on offsetting arrangement in
long service payment scheme in HKSAR

In June 2022, the HKSAR Government enacted the
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”) which will be effective
from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under the
Amendment Ordinance, any accrued benefits attributable
to the employer’'s mandatory contributions under
mandatory provident fund scheme (‘“MPF Benefits”) of
an entity would no longer be eligible to offset against
its obligations on long service payment (‘LSP”) for the
portion of the LSP accrued on or after the Transition
Date. There is also a change in the calculation basis of
last monthly wages for the portion of the LSP accrued
before the Transition Date.

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied practical
expedient in HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b) (the “Practical
expedient”) to account for the offsetable MPF Benefits
as deemed employee contributions to reduce the current
service costs in the period in which the related services
were rendered.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPFLSP offsetting
mechanism in HKSAR” (the “Guidance”) which provides
clarified and detailed guidance on the accounting
considerations relating to the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism. The Guidance clarified that following the
enactment of the Amendment Ordinance, LSP is no
longer a “simple type of contributory plans” to which the
Practical expedient had been intended to apply.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(A) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(continued)

Change in accounting policy on offsetting arrangement in
long service payment scheme in HKSAR (continued)

By following the Guidance, the Group has therefore
changed its accounting policy and ceased to apply
the Practical expedient and reattribute the deemed
employee contributions on a straight-line basis from
the date when services by employees first lead to their
benefits in terms of the LSP legislation in accordance
with HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a). The cumulative effect of
recognising these adjustments as of 31 December 2022
or for the year then ended was not material and hence
no adjustment was made to the beginning accumulated
losses, or another component of equity.

Impacts on application of amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS practice statement 2 disclosure of accounting
policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting
policy information.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =ZF+ A =Z+—HIFE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(A)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(continuedq)

Impacts on application of amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS practice statement 2 disclosure of accounting
policies (continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and
to judge whether information about an accounting policy
is material to its financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial position and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with the guidance set out in the
amendments, accounting policy information that is
standardised information, or information that only
duplicates or summarises the requirements of the
HKFRSs, is considered immaterial accounting policy
information and is no longer disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements so as not to obscure
the material accounting policy information disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Except for disclosed above, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(B) AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

R REETERBUBER
HEA([ERMBREER])

(#&)

(B)

EHEMERRERNEBTE
BRI REER

AEERAREFSRA NIEBEM
1B A R AR 2 B8 I 75 s R

not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10

BEREGTERFE28 BB BRE
XERIZE105% (BFTR)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BB IWERERE169E (BRI A)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements

ER ST LRSI (BRI ARN) ke
275l

Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ERE1H (BT AR)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

BB ERETR RE BB HREER
BT (BETAR)

Amendments to HKAS 21

fE3T

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (amendments)?

BEEHEABENRNAECECHNEELEITE
(BRTA)3

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

EREDFNEEAE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’

ABESERRBNIFRE
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants’
MEERONIERB EE

Supplier Finance Arrangements'’

HERBRE LB

Lack of Exchangeability?

BB ERE219 (BFT4) fRZ A H a2

1 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! RZE-_NF—A—Hz 2’
January 2024. 6 B 12 B R AR 2o

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZE_RAF—-—HA—Hzz#&
January 2025. B 46 B G 2 BRI AR 2

3 to be determined. 8 fFiE -

The directors anticipate that the application of all other
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rule”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o)

B R ¥R AR B A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ - T - =F+ - A=+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the property,
plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

Construction in progress for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING
(continueq)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of premises that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
LEASES (continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”") to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o)

B R ¥R AR B A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ - T - =F+ - A=+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve. Such exchange differences
accumulated in the translation reserve are not reclassified to
profit or loss subsequently.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
oCcCcurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including trade receivables, other
receivables, amount due from ultimate holding company, loan
receivable, fixed time deposits and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
end of the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ - T - =F+ - A=+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to mest
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of financial assets is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments through a loss
allowance account.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
accrued expenses, other payables and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customers. The average
credit period is 90 days upon delivery.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
TAXATION (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred are vested in accordance with the
scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions, the
amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits schemes operated by the government
of the PRC is to make the specified contributions under the
schemes.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =ZF+ A =Z+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
PROVISIONS (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

RELATED PARTY

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

RELATED PARTY (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

)

(V)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s major accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and loan
receivable

Trade and other receivables and loan receivable are assessed
for ECL. In addition, the Group uses provision matrix to
calculate ECL for the trade receivables. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables,
other receivables and loan receivable are disclosed in note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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88

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bills payables and bank borrowings, net of bank
balances and cash, and equity attributable to the owner of the
Company, which comprises issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issue of new debts or
the redemption of the existing debts.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital
requirements.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

EXERERE

AEEEREERANERAEENE R
ARNERE WEREBLLEKMERE
HABBRRERERNDR - NEH 2 B8
REGEBEFERTIE

AEENEARBREREFE (21
ENRERIBITER  HRRITER
RBREARKRAREE AREED (B
BEBRITRALER)

EXTHRSERNRE - FRZWETH
—H EEEREARARZSHRENR
MRRERR NRERRBEES ZHER
EREBXMERE BT RETH
EHXBOREGEES FTHEEREAR

Rk EEa B EMT

2023 2022

—=2_-= —E-F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® T ARBFT

Total debts (note) BER R () 107,657 101,517
Less: Bank balances and cash W RITEBREIRS (13,094) (16,571)
Net debt B H5E 94,563 84,946
Total equity ey e 239,598 331,812
Net debt to equity ratio FEERRILE 40% 26%
Total debts to equity ratio wEEERLE 45% 31%

Note: Total debts comprise bills payables and bank borrowings
as detailed in notes 25 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

(B)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

e BRRHE

ECE_=F+_A=1+—HILFEE

7. €®IHE
(A)

SRTEWNER

2023 2022
—E—-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARET T
Financial assets ERMEE
At amortised cost S A A 144,654 229,964
At fair value through profit or loss BATER AEE 7,779 4,245
Financial liabilities cEE
At amortised cost biog: R0 N 123,763 130,681
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) HHXEREEEEZERBEER

POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, loan receivable, amount
due from ultimate holding company, fixed time deposits,
bank balances and cash, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, trade and bills payables, accrued
expenses, other payables and bank borrowings. Details
of the financial instruments for the Group are disclosed in
respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, other price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continuead)

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases
denominated in United States dollar (‘USD”), Japanese
Yen (“JPY”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”), which are
different from the functional currencies of the group
entities carrying out the transactions.

Also, certain trade receivables and bank balances and
cash are denominated in USD, JPY and HKD which
are currencies other than the functional currency of
the relevant group entities. The carrying amounts of
the foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities of the Group at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

7. &@®IH(#)

(B)

BEEREEZEERBEE (£)

5 m

B
AEBEAENUET([ET]) BT
(MBxhHRET (BT EZ
SNEEE ZEEETRANAEHE
ERETRHZNEER-

BESN - E T B 5 RAGKIR  RITA
R IBE AR BT BT
B X AT kBETLIEREBE
BER2IEEE ARERRSE
HMARMINESABEZEREERE
BREZREENT:

Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2023 2022 2023 2022

—_E_= —_=E-= —Eg2-= —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®BTT AR¥TR AR®TT
usD ETT 81,448 130,299 - -
JPY HT 18,261 12,401 - -
HKD AT 2,825 9,825 - -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the directors continuously
monitor the related foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of USD,
JPY and HKD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% for all periods increase or decrease in USD, JPY
and HKD against the functional currency. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in post-tax loss where USD, JPY and HKD
strengthen 5% against the functional currency. For a 5%
weakening of USD, JPY and HKD against the functional
currency, there would be an equal or opposite impact on
the loss and other equity and the balances below would
be negative.

Impact on loss for the year

usb EP
JPY AT
HKD BT

EWMIA &)

BEEREEZEERBE (£)

s mbEE (&)

EEmEE (&)

BRE D
AEBTEmMEXT BTRET
SN [ B -

TREHNAAMEAREE X
T ARTRBTENEER T ES
f2E5% 2 BMRRE F1E - 6% YRR
RAAEEEZEIEAE 2 HI
ERBRAZ BREL R WK
EREHIEERSEARED
ZaHE - BRE DT E B AINE
FHEZRMAXNERIER TR %
s HR LN [E K59% 2 B E)H
BEL - NI ZEHKRRET H
RGBT RN TS T {ES% K
BRILR BRI D X7t BT B
TR E R E5% B - S 4 &
BREAtESASEERRZY
B MATNESRKBRBEHC

HENBENTE

2023 2022

—g=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
3,054 4,886
685 465
106 368
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continueq)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. For
equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock
Exchange, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group has appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 1, If the prices of
the respective equity instruments had been 5% (2022:
5%) higher/lower, the pre-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2023 would decrease/increase approximately
by RMB389,000 (2022: RMB212,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed time deposits and fixed rate bank borrowings
(see notes 24 and 27 for details respectively). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank balances (see note 24 for details of
these balances). The exposure to the interest rate risk for
variable rate bank balances is insignificant as the bank
balances have a short maturity period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
relating in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
other receivables, loan receivable, amount due from
ultimate holding company, fixed time deposits and bank
balances. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk,
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
arising from the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group deposited fixed time deposits and bank
balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may cause
the Group’s right with respect to fixed time deposits
and bank balances held to be delayed or limited. The
directors monitor the credit rating of these banks on an
ongoing basis, and consider that the Group’s exposure
to credit risk as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were
minimal.

For other receivables, loan receivable and amount due
from ultimate holding company, the directors make
periodic assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables, loan receivable and amount due from
ultimate holding company, based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The directors believe that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balances of other receivables and amount
due from ultimate holding company.

Trade receivables of the Group consist of a large number
of customers and spread across geographical areas.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)

The Group’s policy to manage credit risk is to deal only
with credit worthy counterparties. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has formulated
a credit policy and, delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade receivables based on
provision matrix and on individual basis for those material
long outstanding balances. The trade receivables are
grouped under a provision matrix based on shared credit
risk characteristics by reference to repayment histories
for recurring customers. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for
its customers because these customers consist of a large
number of customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL
or individual assessment.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 1.

(B)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following tables show the analysis of gross carrying
amount and loss allowance of trade receivables based
on past due ageing:

As at 31 December 2023

$RMIA#)

BEEREEZEERBE (£)

=B R R B EFE (E)
TREIIZBMEKEDNE S
& WK TE AR T 4R (B N B R B R 0
D

R-ZBE-_=%+=-A=+—H

Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount  Loss allowance
FEHEEE IREAE EiEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
BaLk AR TR AR¥ TR
Not yet due i 7K 380 B 9.18 82,349 7,558
1-90 days past due B EI1 290K 31.50 16,061 5,059
91-180 days past due 0 #§91-180K 61.30 8,765 5,373
181-365 days past due # HA181-365K 79.79 18,505 14,765
Over 365 days past due # BA365 K A £ 100 45,052 45,052
170,732 77,807

As at 31 December 2022

RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H

Expected  Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
TRHIEIE = IREEE e
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Bkt ARBET T ARET T
Not yet due i 7 480 B 1.99 59,786 1,188
1-90 days past due B HI1 20K 2.09 67,823 1,416
91-180 days past due #HA91-180K 3.08 24,315 749
151,924 3,353

The trade receivables which were 181-365 days and over
365 days past due were all assessed as credit-impaired
based on the results of the individual assessments of
ECL of these balances. There were no other significant
balances of trade receivables which were individually
assessed and determined to be credit-impaired.

1R 45 ¥ 80 Bi181 2 365K I #1 #3365
FAEWE SR RIBZRIE#ET
MIBEHEEEETHER %EE
WHRBEAEHEREALREER
B-HEEMABENE S EIWGIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EHZE — &

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continuead)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The expected loss rate are estimated based on provision
matrix and individual basis for those material long
outstanding balances. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group has provided impairment loss of approximately
RMB74,454,000 (2022: RMB1,707,000) for trade
receivables.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

7.

—=F+-A=+—HBItFE

SRMIA#)

(B)

BEEREEZEERBEE (£)

BB R B EFE (E)
HREHBRNEARNKE  BHE
BERNRBEREEEZAGE &
EETEHRS R UBRREFRE
B EEHBANBEBEER-

BT -_=—F+-gF=+—
BIEFE AEBERE ZE WK
HERBEBEBEBEOARK
74,454,000 (ZE = =—F: AR
#1,707,0007T ) °

T%%%E\JE%{IQE?&%%FEH&Z%(
ERRNEHERERERE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-

impaired) impaired)

2HITEH ZHATEH

FEE#R BEEEE

(EBEEHE) (EERE)

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

As at 1 January 2022 RZE=——F—H—H 2,060 -

Impairment loss recognised for the year 4 A 2 & nwﬁ%@)ﬁﬁg 1,707 -

Disposal of a subsidiary HEWB A (414) -

As at 31 December 2022 and A
as at 1 January 2023 +ZA=F+—8K

—E-=%—H—H 3,353 -

Impairment loss recognised for the year £ AN 2 MR EE 18 14,287 60,167
As at 31 December 2023 R-EBE=-=F

+=—A=+-—H 17,640 60,167

For other receivables and amount due from ultimate B At JE U SR IR T2 e U AR IR
holding company, the ECL had been provided under 12m NRREME  BEEEE K12
ECL. For loan receivable, the ECL had been provided A AEBREEBETIR EKE
under lifetime ECL. RMmE BHREEBENIERAE
H{=EREIR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE — &

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

For other receivables, the ECL has been provided under
12m ECL assessment. The 12m ECL was calculated by
multiplying the 12m PD, LGD and EAD. The 12m PDs
represented the probability of default occurring over
the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the
instrument respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
has reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB6,411,000 for other receivables (2022: impairment
loss of approximately RMB5,123,000). The following
table shows the movement in 12m ECL that has been
recognised for other receivable under general approach:

e BRRHE

TEF+ A=+ HIEFE

7. &®MIH(#)

(B)

MEEBEEBREREE (&)

BB R BEFE (&
PEMERKENS  BHREEE
BRE12(E A B ME S BB
AR E-12E A EMEREER
ThR12E AR BB R X
MBLYORBM OMERSESL -
1218 AE OB R 8 T AR ARKI2
A RBTHRELEQNA G
1 o

HE-_ET-_=F+-_A=+—H
LEF S - AN 62 [ Bt H At JE Ui 08 1
5] 5 1B &5 18 40 A R #6,411,0007T
(ZEZZFBEBEOARE
5,123,0007T) ° TREIIEZ—MK 7
/fﬁdaﬁﬂﬂrﬁléz IEEEME’H—M

12m ECL

+T=EAEH

FEFE

RMB’000

AR T T

As at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—_F—H—H 1,579
Impairment loss recognised for the year FRERAREFE 5,123
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-_—F+_-A=+—H 6,702
Reversal of impairment loss for the year FABRERESE 6,411)
As at 31 December 2023 R=B=-=F+=H=+—H 291

The Group categories trade or other receivables as
credit-impaired when a customer or debtor breaches
the contract, such as a default or past due event. Where
trade or other receivables have been written off, the
Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 35% (2022:
35%) and 97% (2022: 80%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer, which is
located in Cambodia and the five largest customers
which are located in Japan and Cambodia respectively
within the manufacturing and sales of umbrellas and the
umbrella parts segment. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals.

AEEREPREBBARRAD
(ﬁﬂ?*iLﬁi@%%#)ﬁﬂvs\
FEEMERFTEADERELER
573518 - 4 55 53 5 2 o L

B AEBEgRERIEFITEIN
Uiz (o] ) 57 &9 FE U 7078 o fig U (3] - Bl
RIBREANER

HRRNE 5 EBGIERRE 235% (=
T F 3% RIT% (==
F:80% )7 Bl BIEW A S B RS
LEERNERRNEEHR G2
BEAEF (MAREE) RFTA KX
BFE (A BARRRIHE) 2 FIE
WAEERBEESEPRR - AF
EREEERR AEEERED
EREXAEEEEEREE
TIEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EHZE — &

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Except for the above described, the Group does not
have any other significant concentrations of credit risk.
The exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group calculated the ECL of loan receivable using
three main components: a probability of default (“PD”),
a loss given default (‘LGD”) and the exposure at default
(‘EAD”). During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
loan receivable was transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime
ECL (credit-impaired). The lifetime ECL was calculated by
multiplying the PD, LGD and EAD. The EAD represented
the expected balance at default, taking into account the
repayment of principal and interest from the balance
sheet date to the default event together with any
expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD
represented expected losses on the EAD given the event
of default, taking into account, among other attributes,
the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it was
expected to be realised and the time value of money.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group has provided impairment loss of approximately
RMB653,000 for loan receivable (2022: approximately
RMB2,424,000).

An analysis of the gross carrying amount of loan
receivable as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as
follow:

7.

—=F+-A=+—HBItFE

€@ TH &)
B) HM¥EMREEEERBE (£)

=B R R B EFE (&)
BRUA_EFTAE SN REE YL EE
Eﬁ%*FEﬂﬁ°%%ﬁfﬂﬁ

s IR

BE_ZT_=ZFR=-F=-=
T-AZ+—BLFEE - AEEHE
AZExZHNBoTEREKE
HETEHREEEE  BOBX ([&
HE]) BB AKE([EYIE
KEDREHRRB O (ELOR
S 0] BE-_T-_ZF+—=
A=+—HLFE EBREKMA12
BAEHEEFEEZ=2H7EH
SEBEB(EERE) -2HEH
EEEBRENHE BHBLE
MEARBMOMRETE-ED
Bk D IEBEE NG K EE
E%%Eﬁ%é%%#%i%ﬁ
MAE RFIEER  ERT[HFER
BIEBEEERZRREDONER - ENE
KEBENEHEEBRELORR
RO HTEERE AR WS T R (H ek
BIE)BHE RS RFREEYE
RIBRMERA R EENRREE-

BHz—_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—H
IEFE  AEBEGERE R
BB 18 B 5 40 A R 653,0007T
ZEZZF: AR%2,424,000

Jo) °
T - —F+—

A== a_ FE U B 2B T AR
ST

i 56

—E-=

D

2023 2022
=== i

—_ = - ——

RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB’000
ARBT R

12m ECL +-{EAEREEEE - 13,262
Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 2 HEFEHIEEEIE

(ZERME) 13,485 -

13,485 13,262
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE — &

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in 12m ECL
and lifetime ECL that has been recognised for loan
receivable under general approach.

e BRRHE

TEF+ A=+ HIEFE

7. E®MIA#)

(B)

BEEBEEEEREE (&)

=B R R B EFE (&)
TREIIR—RIDELEEER
fE 2B 91218 A TEH;W*EEETE&%
HEREEBRRNES:

Lifetime ECL
12m ECL (credit-impaired)
2HITEH
+=EAEH EEE#R
EEE#E (E&RE) it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREETTT AREETTT
As at 1 January 2022 RZEZ=F—HA—H - - -
Impairment loss recognised FAEHRRERSE
for the year 2,424 - 2,424
As at 31 December 2022 and RZTZZ
1 January 2023 TZA=+—-HR
—E-=%—F—H 2,424 - 2,424
Transfer to lifetime ECL EREHEMEE
(not credit-impaired) &8 (REEHE) (2,424) 2,424 -
Impairment loss recognised FNERRAREES
for the year - 653 653
Exchange realignment [ SR - 145 145
- 3,222 3,222
Liquidity risk TEBELEE

In management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

REBRBDECRAR AEEER
MgmBRehkReFEYNER
ﬁﬁ%i%ﬁﬁ$%@%@2*

FoRERERERS I FE-E
BEERRITERZABERL
BRTTE B M5 - AR BE KRR
TERIERRBDETHEZRIR

TRBEZTEERRFIAE
BETESREBBEZLHRTEOR
HIER - R RIIBBE AR E AN K
ZEREAHNREBABZIANER
RenEMmHE - ZXBENER
AEREME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. EWMIAE#E)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) HMERERMEEBEERERE (£)
POLICIES (continuead)

mEEZEE ()

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023
R-B-=%+-A=+—-H

Weighted On demand Total
average or within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years cash flows amount
nE  RERIA AFEBRE
FHF% 1£R 2255 R MEAH REE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR AR%TxR
Non-derivative financial FiTESRER
liabilities
Trade and bills payables & 5 & B I N/A
AES TEA 45,011 - 45,041 45,041
Accrued expenses and  JERTER R EM N/A
other payables BB TEA 5,332 - 5,332 5,332
Bank borrowings |ITEK 4.16% 74,014 - 74,014 73,390
Total et 124,387 - 124,387 123,763

As at 31 December 2022
WZZEZZ§+ZA=1+—H

Weighted ~ On demand Total
average or within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 2-5 years cash flows amount
g ABERE
FigF| = PENSN MEETE FHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARET:R
Non-derivative financial FiTECREE
liabilities
Trade and bills payables & ZENFER N/A
ENRE TEM 59,455 - 59,455 59,455
Accruals expense and B BRAREM N/A
other payables JER R TEA 3,126 - 3,126 3,126
Bank borrowings BITER 3.73% 68,997 - 68,997 68,100
Total @t 131,578 - 131,578 130,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(€)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the directors at the
end of each reporting period to explain the cause of
fluctuations in fair value of the asset.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are input for which
market data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

e BRRHE

ECE_=F+_A=1+—HILFEE

7. T@®IHE#)

(€)

TEMIANQFE

HERAFER AEEEEFEAT
S BREE - REEEUS B — A8
ANER FNEESZEBEVEER
HEMETHE - EEEHZEE
BINEHEMBEREE BLEE
MERNERZEN 2GAEB EE
[ 7 % ¥R &5 B R (7] 3 =5 0 3R A O
ER UBEEEATEEBZIR
B o

TREJNAEERHFERMRIZE
FEEGENEMTANAFE"
HT BB M HE LR F135%
AFEAERAREI D /=R
FEES A FEAESE DAL
N2EHERMMAEREABD
ABREMEMEZUEEN T

s FARMBEEERFE-R
wWAEFENRQFE AIHA
REEXBBENTERHR
BT IS R EHBRE

s FoHHE - FERAE_ME
MNEFTERNRQAFE IR
AE—HmAERGAER
YWEFEREATABEREA
B-TABEHABATS
BETATANBAER: X

s E=AMHEEAEATH
BER@ A AEBFENAFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ - T - =F+ - A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 7. E®MIA#)
C) EWMIENLFEE)

(C) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Level 1
E—
RMB’000
AR¥T
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZEB-=%+=-A=+—H
Fair value on on a recurring basis HEEEEFN B A FE
Financial assets of FVTPL BRAFEFABENSRBEE
— Equity securities listed — B AZFT E R AR A TR
in the Stock Exchange 7,779

As at 31 December 2022 RZEBE-__F+-A=+—H

Fair value on on a recurring basis BB EF B A FE

Financial assets of FVTPL BATEFABRNSREE

— Equity securities listed — B R FT T B R AN F 55

in the Stock Exchange 4,245

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out REEZ R RAERN S BER
of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the date of ZEHNEREHTE R BER
the events or change in circumstances that caused the BHAFTEERSREEE-
transfer.
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, 2R E = R_FT_F

there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

102 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Sales of umbrellas and umbrella parts 4 & 4 KR EZ 20

Wy 3 B H A A R W &8

EFEHWE
2023 2022

—— =

e

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT

294,467 363,948

Timing of revenue recognition
At point in time R fiE] B

SR W 58 AY B S

2023 2022
==

e

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

294,467 353,948

For sales of umbrellas and umbrella parts, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery). Transportation and
handling activities that occur before customers obtain
control are considered as fulflment activities. Following
the delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. The average credit period is 90 to 180 days
upon delivery.

There is no sales-related warranty, refund or return
associated with umbrellas and umbrella parts in the
performance obligation.

Transaction allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for
umbrellas and the umbrella parts such that the Group
does not disclose information about revenue that the
Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for sales
of umbrellas and the umbrella parts that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.

HERBELRRLTHEME &
ERNEHERLEERE ERE
NEBEZRFEEHE (RE)R-
BRI - E R P ES I
AT AENBR EHEHHRE A
BHEE -RRER BEAI2#E
MBEREERMIBEIANRERE
REEERBEAETSET WK
EERAREKEBLANRR-  FHE
EH AR E%IOE180H -

RIR

BHELLTESETR
THAHERENRE B

e

5]
&

(=R

&

PHEREFENHFGEAN %
BHHXE
AEBEEERELRRETHM
HEAHWTRERAEEVBREE
A1 FI2IRPOATHEHERE
% B AN ER B R A B AN
SEMERBEBHERAS —FHINA
THRELRRTEHFHESLD
) R 4 PR 4O 3 75 B B AR R
W as ) & £ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 8. WHERHEMBRARWE (&)

(1) OTHER INCOME AND NET GAIN/(LOSS) n Httk ARWz (EE)F
o)

2023 2022
—g== —z=—-

== S —

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Bank interest income IRITF B U A 1,308 4,797
Loan interest income B B 1,049 417
Government grants (note) BB (M) 1,026 2,219
Loss on financial assets BAFEEGABRDN
at fair value through profit or loss cEMEEY (BB) Wi (382) (4,863)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMRBA Rz W - 5,056
Exchange gain, net P 5 Y25 F 58 1,539 10,870
Others HAt 116 530
4,656 19,026
Note: Bt 5
During the year ended 31 December 2023, government grants HE-_T-_=F+-A=+—81F
of approximately RMB1,026,000 (2022: RMB2,219,000) were FE BRI ZBEFA@EDORARE
received, where the Group had fulfilled the relevant criteria, 1,026,000 (ZZEZ—F: ARM
in respect of certain research and development projects 2,219,0007t) F Edh - AEBEEHFA S
and employment support scheme. There were no unfulfiled FHEEE R EZFFE 2 EAST
conditions or contingencies relating to these government grants. EoMEEZERNTMEE AN RE
BRAG M A F IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =ZF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment, which is
the manufacture and sales of umbrellas and the umbrella parts.
Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the board of directors, being the
chief operating decision maker of the Group (the “CODM”). The
CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, no other discrete
financial information is provided other than the Group’s results
and financial position as a whole. Accordingly, only entity-
wide disclosures, product information, major customers and
geographic information are presented.

PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group has been engaged in manufacturing and sales of
Poly-Olefin-Elastomer (“POE”) umbrella, nylon umbrella and
umbrella parts. The POE umbrella and nylon umbrella are sold
to various distributors and the umbrella parts are sold to other
umbrella manufacturers. An analysis of the Group’s revenue by
product category is as follows:

AEBEKEE— D AMEERBEEN
PRNETE G D TR EREMH
TEFE (IXAEENZELCERARE
([EEZERKE]) 2RBRE —
ZAREWM FELERAFEEARELE
BREFHEREDMRE - BRAEED
%%ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁﬁﬂkﬂ?l\’*E%H?ET,\,J&

DEBUNMBER B -E257

BEREEOPE EREHN TERFP
T dh & B o

EmEHR

AEBNERENHEER B KB
([POE] )M EREER R RRBT It -
POERZ KEREERBRIHE FEERRM
DA NRETIFHRAEE T HMARE
REm - AEBEEERENE S 2 W=
ST

2023 2022

—E-= —=FE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
POE umbrella POE % 59,488 83,307
Nylon umbrella JEBER 2 114,400 72,840
Umbrella parts MAET M 120,579 197,801
294,467 353,948
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is located in the PRC, accordingly, no
geographical information about the Group’s non-current assets
has been presented. An analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers based on the location of operation of the
customers (i.e. determined based on the location to which the
products were delivered) presented by geographical location is
detailed below:

DEER (&)
it EE R

AEEZEEUNTE At TEL7)
BRAAKESERBEENLRER 1R
BEPEEE (AR BT )
iR S A RE K AINEE P 2 Wak tF
oz DRI

2023 2022

—_=E_= S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET ARBTT
Japan SN 110,167 92,633
PRC (country of domicile) R (&BRTER) 68,989 80,178
Kingdom of Cambodia RiEEE 96,360 156,860
Europe EOM 2,202 4,786
Republic of Korea [ 14,622 18,007
Other Asian countries Hap g MBEIR 1,627 1,484
294,467 353,948

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EBXEEFZER

Details of the customers individually representing 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue are as follows:

Customer A BFEA
Customer B ®FB
Customer C XFC
Customer D ZFED

BRI A B 2510% KU L2 BS 2
BB -

2023 2022
—E_= T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
61,305 43,529
33,674 129,225
—* 40,405

54,762 —

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

Except disclosed above, no other customers contributed 10%
or more to the Group’s revenue for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE - E - =F+-_A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BAFE R A

2023 2022

=
—=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT

Interest expense on: Ty &EEBEzFBRAL:
— bank borrowings —RITER 3,045 3,954
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. EHEX

2023 2022
e

—_

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARBTT

PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI TS
— current tax —BNEARI IR 361 4,841
361 4,841
Deferred tax credit (note 28) EIER I % (M17128) (315) (49)
46 4,792
()  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman () REFASHELREBEZHSZ
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any BAIRSER  NEEBASN TR
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. FHEeERSABEXES MG
(i)  Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong (i) WEEBEFNESHMARSG  FBRA
Kong, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying AENREBEBILR8.25% 2 &
group entity in Hong Kong are taxed at 8.25%, and EF E2E SR TAMTIE I
profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The 216.5% 2 MR iR2 B BB T
profits of group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for R NBABIIE - BABRNTRKE
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime continue to be FEHMERGHER 2 EEEEDN
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. i T 4 BB 1216.5% M) B — T = 54
M IE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 {(Q7
20234 F 3}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1. s

(i) (continued) (i

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for both years as the Group’s income neither arises in,
nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

(i) ~ Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax and (iii)
Implementation Regulation of the Corporate Income Tax
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both

BAX (#)
(%)

EERA BHAIEB RS
B EHBAMBRAMNSE L
TEA-Eil MIEEEHEET
8B M H i 3 BER BRI 2 16.5%
-

MRZMEFEARELRRNE
BELEREFEAKRA BARE
BNERELRE-

REPECERSREREEM
BERRERE - B EQ AR
% PR B BB R 49 £325% o

years.
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FRMSHASXRGGBEEEMER
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss WamRZBBBIEBEERAT

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
—g== —E_=

R >

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Loss before tax BT Al S 18 (92,705) (24,641)
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable RERAREERDEERE

to the jurisdictions concerned MERFTEMNBIE (22,783) (4,693)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERHBRAZRGTE

for tax purpose (1,248) (3,508)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AAHBAE MG TE

for tax purpose 915 6,704
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised FERMBEEBEZHEETE 6,151 4,497
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATHNBHERER L

differences not recognised MiEs 2 17,011 1,792
Income tax expense for the year FAMEHRAS 46 4,792
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Wages, salaries and allowances

12. FRAEHE

T& ¥Halozi

2023
—E-=

RMB’000
ARET T

FRBBREMER TSR REH:

2022

RMB’000
ARBTIT

(excluding directors’ emoluments) (TBIEEEHE) 31,541 39,474
Retirement benefit schemes contributions  iE R & F 5 2t 3¢
(excluding directors) (TBIEESE) 5,239 7,541
Equity-settled share-based payment LARE 25 5 S DARR 9 7%
expenses ER 2R - 4,419
Total staff costs (note (i) B T4 (MIE(x) 36,780 51,434
Cost of materials used in production A EFTAM R A 225,593 260,735
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BEREHE2ER
plant and equipment 383 327
Depreciation of property, Y- -HEREEITE
plant and equipment 4,540 4,613
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 536 731
Research and development expenses T AT S MR B 2
included in administrative expenses (B 5 (i) )
(note (i) 12,617 13,321
Operating lease rental relating to FHEHEE T KEHEMS
short-term lease 10 10
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z SR B & 524 532
Notes: B 5
0] During the year ended 31 December 2023, included in the 0] HEz-_T-_=F+=-A=+—H
cost of sales was approximately RMB28,956,000 (2022: IEFE HERAFBEHOARE
approximately RMB33,034,000) related to staff cost. 28,956,0007C (Z T ZZF : HARE
33,034,0007T ) #) B TR A °
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, included in the iy HEZTEZ=F+ZA=t+—HIEF

research and development expenses was approximately
RMB1,751,000 (2022: approximately RMB1,510,000) related to

staff cost.

B HERIFEEHARKE,751,000

T(ZEZ=ZF
TL)RIB TR A

(49 AR #1,510,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wa B S AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ - T - =F+ - A=+—HIFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. EREE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

RARBERANEBENERERREEGE
BIRBATEEAE

2023 2022

—=— = —gn ==

—_—=<—— — = =

RMB’000 RMB’000

Loss E#E
Loss for the purposes of basic and ARETEEREERR
diluted loss per share (loss for the year ~ #SEE 18 18
attributable to owners of the Company) (AR F# A A &1L
FEERE)

AR®TR ARETTT

(92,751) (29,433)

Number of shares RO E

Weighted average number of RIEsTEBRER R
ordinary shares for the purpose of HEEEN T AR
basic and diluted loss per share InkEFEHE

412,550 367,188

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where applicable
had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share
calculation, the exercise of these potential ordinary shares is
not assumed in the calculation of diluted loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS

Details of emoluments paid and payable to the directors
of the Company, which include the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company (“CEQ”) for the year are as
follows:

Salaries and allowances

22

000

460
360
360

FEREN
2023
T--f CBo=f -ZCC
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB
Name of director ARETR ARETT AR%Tn ARETE
Executive directors HTES
M. Huang ERE 108 103 380
Yang Guang Bk - _ 360
Lin Zhenshuang Hhe% - - 35
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth {21k 163 154 -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors

Lee Kit Ying, Winnie TER 163 154 -
Yang Xuetai BEX 60 60 -
Tso Sze Wei ER4 163 154 -

e BRRHE

ECE_=F+_A=1+—HILFEE

14 ES - THHEABRREEMNS

(A)

EERTHRARHE

FARARRREER (BEARAT
BAEE ([TTBAE]) ) BN RE
MHZMEHFBmT:

Retirement benefits scheme

contributions

|ARATHRER

2023

k- Sank$ 3
RMB'000
ARETT

—5--f
RMB'000
AREFT

Share based payment
DRBRERHAR
2023
—B-cE
RMB’000
ARBTR AB

2022

—5-CF
RMB'000

RMB'000

T AR%Tr AR%

- 503
- 367
- 340
- 163 154

- - - 163 154
- = - 60 60
- - - 163 154

657 625 1075 1,

180

7

28 - - 1,759 1,833

Mr. Huang is also the CEO of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CEO.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. Emoluments of the independent non-executive
directors shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or CEO as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors or CEO waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in both years.

No transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which
a director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

EAREMBARBITHAR - £X
FIREBENMe B REEETHRA
BT R MRS BN S -

EXATHTEENNEEER
BEREEARBRAEEFH
RERBHOME - £ XPIRIBILIE
HTEFNHEIZRABEER
AprEERERFOME -

AEBEWENFHHTEEHT
B ERBFIMAARSE BN
AR B 1% 2 520 - Sk AE R BER
ZHE-ZMEFE BEEFHL
17 BR AR R B =k [R) B R 32 1 ] B

N
ik e

RRABHARBME R BB ER]
VEAEEEXRBEEBAARRE
ERETEEIEEREAEEARE
@ BN ANERKAF E AT H
DEMZRS RHEREH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EHZE — &

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include three (2022: three)
directors. The emoluments payable to the remaining
two (2022: two) individuals during the year which are
employees were as follows:

—=F+-A=+—HBItFE

14 EE THRAIAREEMSE (&)

B) EEEESHMAZL

REEAEELERZRFMAL
BRE=A2(ZT-_F:=Z8)%
F-FAERMNESBMEG (ZT=Z
FWMBE)IALT(EE)OBME W
T

2023 2022

—=ZE_= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

Salaries and allowances e MOERh 639 365
Retirement benefits scheme RKEFIET 23R

contributions 10 9

649 374

During the year ended 31 December 2022, share options
were granted to certain employees who are non-directors
in respect of their services to the Group under the share
option scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in note 30.

The aggregated emoluments of each of the remaining
two (2022: two) highest paid individuals fell within the
following bands:

HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—H
IEFE BERAQFBRES
AARBRETIHESREERNASE
EREMORS SR D ERE-
BREEFBHNEATBR
FMIEE30 ©

EHMAE(ZE_—_F WA &
SEHMATHATINFIAT &
& :

Number of individuals

A

2023
—m— =

Nil to HKD1,000,000

e

£ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the five highest paid individuals waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments in both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

15. DIVIDEND

16.

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor
any dividend has been proposed by the board of directors
subsequent to the end of the reporting period (2022: nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(@)

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employees are required to contribute 5% of their
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and
they can choose to make additional contributions. The
employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5%
of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contributions”), and
this is the only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme to make the required contribution.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the age
of 65, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes operated
by the government of the PRC to make the specified
contributions under the schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The total expense recognised in consolidated profit or loss

of approximately RMB5,266,000 (2022: RMB7,569,000)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

15.

16.

iR =

FAME IR SER IR RAKE
EHRBEESMRERIKRSEMA
T )

=

iR K18 R 5t &

@ AEEREFBRIELESH
EIEpI R aRES B -afEe R
SMmEERAEEEESHEE
THEBYXTIABENESEH -
BEGRESHE RBEEKEAR
#5% =% £ R & = 1,500 7T {E
WA EELEIMER B
FHEAETILZEE A#H5% 5k
PR % /= 1,500/ 7T 5T & ([ 58 i) 14
;) Mt AEAEBERE®RES
FrEELE A ERRNE—ET-&
BRG5ERIR B TR EAT
TERE N B EES 2 50 XA 6l
MK e

R
5
B

b AEENFEMBARNEERZS
HEABERAEENBEREENR
RAEFIEH 8 - B A R AR &K
AERFE B 2 L AR R AR A 5 &
EHER - AEE R P EBT2E
HRARBAEF SN -EEA/R
BB E LR E K - N E
R AR -

REEGEGTFERNEBHINBAR
5 266,000 (ZE-Z_F: AR
7,569,0007L) A EEREEZ T
—ZHF T A=+ BHIEFERFER
A EM L R ZEFTE TR
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

17. % -BERRE

Construction in Machinery and Motor
Buildings progress equipment vehicles Total
BT ERIR BERRE RE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL AREFT AREFT ARETT
Cost 2%
As at 1 January 2022 RZE--F—-f-H 122,804 446 25,382 3,937 152,569
Transfer &% 446 (446) - - -
Additions during the year TEERE - - 2,991 19 3010
Disposals during the year TEENE - - (3,408) - (3,408)
Disposal of a subsidlary (note 31) HERBLA (K1) (36,729) - (2,815) (129) (39,673)
As at 31 December 2022 and i —-a
asat 1 January 2023 +ZA=+-Bk
“E-=f-f-H 86,521 - 22,150 3,827 112,498
Additions during the year ~EERE - - 6,976 537 7513
Disposals during the year TEEHE - - (1918) (45) (1,963)
As at 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=%
+-A=+-7 86,521 - 21,208 4319 118,048
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE
As at 1 January 2022 RZE--F—f—-H 66,522 - 23,529 2,072 92,123
Charge for the year FRZE 3,754 - 476 383 4613
Eliminated on disposals R 8 - - (3,059) - (3,058)
Disposal of a subsidlary (note 31) HERBLRR (MFEs1) (24,656) - (2.781) (54) (27,491)
As at 31 December 2022 and i ——a
asat 1 January 2023 +ZRA=+-Bk
“E-=%#-f-H 45,620 - 18,169 2,401 66,190
Charge for the year FRZM 3,09 - 1,048 39 4540
Eliminated on disposals LERHH - - (1,540) (40) (1,580)
As at 31 December 2023 RZF-=F
+-A=1+-8 48,716 - 17,671 2,157 69,150
Carrying amounts REE
As at 31 December 2023 RZB-=&
+=A=+-H 37,805 - 9,531 1,562 43,898
As at 31 December 2022 i ——-a
+-A=t-8 40,901 - 3,981 1,426 46,308
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =ZF+ A =Z+—HIFE

17. W% BERRHE @)

it BERZREBEE (ERETIE
BRON REBOEA T I F R EITE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuea)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the follow rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of term of gF FAHISK2.5% -
the lease or 2.5% NG HRE
Machinery and equipment 10%-25% B REE  10% E25%
Motor vehicles 10%-33% T 10% £33%
As at 31 December 2023, buildings with carrying amounts of RZEZ=F+-A=+—H EEAE

W%AE%H 028,0007T (=& = =4
AR #2,068,0007T) ZIEFEIRMIES
AEEERFEITHRE ZER-

18. FHEEE

approximately RMB1,028,000 (2022: RMB2,068,000) have
been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Leasehold land
HE T

RMB’000
ARBTIT

Carrying amount as at 1 January 2022 RZEZZF—A—HMEEE 24177
Depreciation charge TEMZ (731)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEKB AR (10,323)
As at 31 December 2022 and as at 1 January 2023 RZE-_—_F+-A=+—H

rE—ZE-=F—H—H 13,123
Depreciation charge WEMRX (536)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2023 RZEBE-_=F+-_A=+—8

B ERE (A 12,587

The leasehold land is located in the PRC under the
medium-term lease. The Group is the registered owner of the
leasehold land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leasehold land from their previous owners, and
there are no longer payments to be made under the term of the
land lease, other than payments based on rateable values set
by the relevant government authorities. These payments vary
from time to time and are payable to the relevant government
authorities. The leasehold land components of these owned
properties are presented separately only if the payment can be
allocated reliably.

As at 31 December 2023, leasehold land with carrying amount
of approximately RMB7,583,000 (2022: RMB7,906,000) have
been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

RiFHBEOEEN LA RFE- A
SERZEETHHNEREE - — KB
MBEEHIE UIEHEMNETIBE
ZHEET ARELHEEGRREZR
B AR R B BT B8P R R
%EHEETT @ﬁhﬁZ%Thw%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
g BAXN THBERGIM-EE
Hﬂ% N Jﬁéﬁ%%mﬁ
ErRA S A EBZY -

RZEZ=F+-_A=+—H @A
45 NR 7,583,000 (ZF = — 4
AR #7,906,0007T) 2 & £ 1 B K #
EBAREBEREBITREZER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. 78

2023
—E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Raw materials R 112,685 116,340
Work-in-progress ERR 1,618 3,051
Finished goods RIRX on 1,063 12,878

115,366 132,269

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 20. A FEFTABZNERMEE
OR LOSS

2023 2022
S5 —E_=

== S —

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Financial assets mandatorily measured BEIRAFEFABER
at FUTPL: FFEMERMEE:
Listed securities held for trading: BIEEEMN LT ES
— Equity securities listed in the Stock -REBERM TR
Exchange of Hong Kong (note) MR H (B5E) 7,779 4,245
Note: Fair value of the listed equity investment has been determined MeE: ETRAREZAFEDZEER
by reference to its quoted market price at the reporting date in WMEABREERMB M S REE
an active market. Fair value is classified as Level 1 recurring fair FEoRFEIBERE-—MEEERT
value measurement. EHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arising from contracts

B2 EWRE

2023 2022

RMB’000
ARBTIT

RMB’000
AR®T R

KEEFPEHNE SR

with customers KIE 170,732 151,924
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBEEE (77,807) (3,353)
92,925 148,571

The Group generally allows average credit period of 90 to 180
days (2022: 90 to 180 days) to its trade customers. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance of credit losses, presented based on the invoice date:

rEE-RETEESIREFPNTHEER
HIR90HZE180H (ZE = =F: 908 &
180R) - NEEYW EAL A FHE BRI AT
AT

AT TREZEBHEINNE 5 EWRIE
(HBREEBERE) KRBT

2023 2022

—EC=F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETIT

0 to 90 days 0%£90H 74,791 58,598
91 to 180 days 91£180H 11,002 66,407
181 to 365 days 181%365H 3,392 23,566
Over 365 days HB3BE365H 3,740 -
92,925 148,571

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate gross
carrying amount of approximately RMB88,383,000 (2022:
RMB92,138,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period. Out of these gross carrying amount of
past due balances, approximately RMB72,322,000 (2022:
approximately RMB24,315,000) have been past due 90 days
or more.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
directors consider any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.

W_ZE-_=F+-"fF=+—H KA&H
Z S RWHRESBEEERRESHAE S
HABR AR {E 4 B A R #88,383,0005T ( —
T~ —F: ARM92,138,0007T) H) FE Uk
HE-RBIMEEEELESHT DA
R#672,322,000 (ZE-—F :HAR
#24,315,0007T ) #1 HAQOK sk A | ©

BEEZRURENAKREER EF
EENRNRECAREREHR &
SR FANEEEENEME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wa B S AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21,

The Group’s trade receivables (net of allowance for credit
losses) that are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant Group entities are as
follows:

EZEWRE (&)

UAREEREERNINGEEEUINE
BEHEMNASEE S EUHE (S0
EEEBEBRE®E M

2023 2022
=== S

—_—— =

RMB’000 RMB’000

UsD ETT
JPN Bt

AR®TR ARETTT

81,448 126,732
18,261 12,109

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 7.

22. PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22.

B 5 YR IR R R E RS S IS ER M A
7 o
RN RIE R H AWK IR

2023 2022
—mm== = —

—_—=<—— — T =

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBTT

Other receivables H b W s E 5,946 36,451
Value-added tax receivables JE Uk 12 B FR 6,058 5,919
Prepayment to suppliers of raw materials T8 -] TR R} i FE P 3R IE 46,718 36,612
Amount due from ultimate holding company & U 5 #2352 f% A &) 208 44 28
58,766 79,010
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEERE (291) (6,702)
58,475 72,308
Less: Non-current portion (note) A IERBIER D (BFE) - 6,710)
Current portion mENE 5 58,475 65,598

Note: The amount represents the prepayment to an independent third
party to acquire certain manufacturing machines.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, because of the
pandemic, which the PRC government implemented the
lockdown of the city, the completion of the machines was
delayed.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the machines have
been completed and delivered, and used by the Group.

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables and
amount due from an ultimate holding company are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

LOAN RECEIVABLE

23.

B & K

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETIT
Fixed-rate loan receivable TE B EWE R 13,485 13,262
Less: Allowance for credit loss B E RSB ERE (3,222) (2,424)
10,263 10,838

Analysis as DT B
Current mE 10,263 10,838

Note: The amount represented a loan to an independent third party,
which is unsecured, interest-bearing with 8% per annum and
repayable within one year. During the year ended 31 December
2028, the loan receivable was extended for one year.

The loan receivable was denominated in HKD, the functional
currency of the relevant Group entities.

FIXED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates. The
fixed time deposits are fixed interest bearing ranging from
0.05% to 3.3% (2022: 1.3% to 4.13%) per annum and mature
within 1 year to 3 years (2022: within 1 year to 3 years) from
the placement dates. The fixed time deposits with the amounts
of approximately of RMB22,673,000 (2022: RMB24,207,000)
were pledged to secure bills payables (2022: bill payables and
bank borrowings) granted to the Group and will be released
upon settlement of bills payables (2022: bill payables and bank
borrowings).

The Group’s fixed time deposits and bank balances and cash
denominated in RMB of approximately RMB32,308,000 (2022:
RMB29,933,000) which are located in the PRC are subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

Bank balances and fixed time deposits are placed with credit
worthy banks with no history of default.

24,

Mis: ZeWEA-BBYE=TRHENE
FoREERBEER LFNE%
ARERAR-FRBEE - REBE_F
“=E+ZAZT-RALEE EBR
BRI —4F o

EWEFRAB T (FEERBEERZI
REE®)FTE-

EHFERRBITERRRE

RITHEBIZBITHTEFI LGB - FH
TFEFENF0.05% E3.3% (T ==
F:1.3%E4.13% ) METEFHEF L -
HRAAENAPEFEFEIFELSE

ZEZFAFEIF) 2BOAR
#022,673,0007L (ZEZZF: AR
24,207,0007T) B TE BB 17 ;X E K B LA
REAEENENZER(ZE__F &
NEBERBITER BREBZELE
B(ZEZ—F ENEBERFITER
BIRRR -

NEBURTE UWAREHEZTE
HERERBTEHRRBEOARE
32,308,000t (ZE - —F: AR
29,933,0007T ) 78 % 1 Bl 7 & & I 15
AR GETE - EIE R EEEBEEE -

RITERREPEARFRRNEERFA
HEEARIRAIRTT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

24. FIXED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND 24. EHIGENREBTEBRES (&)
CASH (continuead)

AEBARBEEEERNIEREE AN
MEBTEZERFRRRITEHLI

The Group’s fixed time deposits and bank balances and cash
that are denominated in currency other than the functional

currency of the relevant Group entities are as follows: ST
2023 2022
—E_= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T AR®T T
usD ETT 13 506
HKD BT 2,825 9,825

Details of impairment assessment of fixed time deposits
and bank balances are set out in note 7 to the consolidated

financial statements.

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25 BESEMGRERER

EHFERERITERARENEF B

REF B B B MAR M EET

=2}

=

2023 2022

—E=H B

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR AR®TTT

Trade payables B 5B FIA 10,774 26,038
Bills payables JEAS =% 34,267 33,417
45,041 59,455
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

25.

BEZENREREMNRE (@)

RIBERRREZRHN2IZ2EHEN
AR ENRERESHTIMT:

2023

—E2=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
0 to 90 days 0%90H 17,707 33,357
91 to 180 days 912180H 19,733 3,199
181 to 365 days 181%365H 7,601 22,899
45,041 59,455

The credit periods granted by the suppliers normally ranging
from 30 days to 120 days for both years. As at 31 December
20283 and 2022, the maturity date of bills payables was ranged
from 30 days to 180 days. All are denominated in RMB.

The fixed time deposits with the amounts of approximately
RMB22,673,000 (2022: RMB24,207,000) were pledged to
secure bills payables granted to the Group and will be released
upon settlement of bills payables.

ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

26.

MEFENHEEIETHEER BN
FI0HE120H- RZ_ZEZ_=F K =_F
T+ A=+—H EAZEENE
HIH T F30H £=180H - T A BN Zi&
HUARBEE-

SHEHAEARK22,673,000L (==
— — 4 AR®24,207,0007T) BV #1717
REEBIEATNEBENEHEMNER
HIRRE R IEN RIR A BB AERR o

CHttENREREN

BT &R
afE

2023 2022

—_=E_-= —=FE-=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARBFT
Contract liabilities aHAaE 16,597 3,164
Other payables H b &~ 5B 1,791 563
Accrued expenses JEFrE A 3,541 2,563
21,929 6,290

Contract liabilities represented advance payments received
from customers for sales of umbrella and the umbrella parts
pursuant to the respective sales contracts before the control of
the products are passed to the customers.

As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB1,410,000. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the year was approximately
RMBS3,164,000 (2022: RMB1,410,000).

ANBEERERNEHESBRER
ZHT REBEHES DIEFEERS
WERERHETHEHENR-

R-ZE-_—_F—HA—H AHAEBAA
R¥1,410,000C  BE_T-_=F+=
A=Z+—BLEE fFAFVAEHERE
B ERIEL B A RES,164,000
T (ZZE==F: AR¥1,410,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EHZE — &

26. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 26.

LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, accrued expenses and other
payables denominated in HKD amounted to approximately
RMB824,000 and RMB36,000 respectively (2022:
RMB780,000 and RMB35,000 respectively).

—=F+-A=+—HBItFE

EsTER HMENE
8E#)

IE& A n)J

RZE_=F+_A=+—"8B UBT
ETEMEERAREMENFTIED B
A AR #824,0007T & A R #36,0007T
(ZZ = —%F: AR¥780,000t X AR
#35,0007T ) °

27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. SRITER

2023 2022
—E-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T

Unsecured, repayable within one year IR AR A RSN
from the end of the reporting period R—FREER 60,390 20,100

Secured, repayable within one year B - AREREHR
from the end of the reporting period B—FREE 13,000 48,000
73,390 68,100

As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings are at the fixed E’\\: T-=F+ZA=+—8 Ri7E

interest rate ranging from 3.40% to 4.55% per annum (2022:
3.40% to 4.55% per annum).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank borrowings
of approximately RMB13,000,000 were secured by: (1)
Group’s buildings with the carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,028,000 and (2) right-of-use assets with the carrying
amount of approximately RMB7,583,000. The remaining bank
borrowings of approximately RMB60,390,000 was personal
guaranteed by Mr. Huang, the director of the Company, and
his spouse and guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings
of approximately RMB48,000,000 were secured by: (1)
Group’s buildings with the carrying amount of approximately
RMB2,068,000; (2) right-of-use assets with the carrying
amount of approximately RMB7,906,000; (3) personal
guarantee by Mr. Huang, the director of the Company, and his
spouse; (4) the property owned by Mr. Huang's spouse; and (5)
guaranteed by a company controlled by the son of Mr. Huang
The remaining balance of bank borrowings of approximately
RMB20,100,000 was unsecured.

The fixed time deposits with carrying amounts of Nil (2022:
RMB24,207,000) were pledged to banks for bank borrowings.
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KSR 17 18 3k 49 A R #13,000,0007T 5 BA
Ty SEERE: WAEEFEMELD A
AR #1,028,000t IEF K (2 BEEE
45 N R ¥7 583,000THE AEEE -
#R TSR 1T 1E 749 A R 560,390,000
ARREEFLEMERBIREEAE
REANEE KB ABREER
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KR 1T 18 340 A R #548,000,0007T A3 LA
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HOBEBAER: QELENTEBE
EWME RO BEELEZ FEHNA
RIREANER B THRITERODARE
20,100,0007T 7 4 K 4 -

FEAMEAS (ZEZE__F: AR
24,207,0007T ) &) F B3 7 s 1R F IR 17
LABRSSRITE K~



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE — &

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

e BRRHE

TEF+ A=+ HIEFE

EEREEE

Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of

subsidiaries

WM B A A

fEH B

AEERE

RMB’000

ARBFT

As at 1 January 2022 R-_ZE__F—H—H 364

Credit to consolidated profit or loss (note 11) FFALGZE B (KMEE11) (49)
As at 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZE_ZF+A=+—HK

—E-=4—H—H 315

Credit to consolidated profit or loss (note 11) FFAERE BT (WiE11) (315)

As at 31 December 2023 R-ZEBE-=%5+=-A=+—H -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB25,719,000 (2022: RMB1,115,000)
available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax
assets has been recognised in respect of tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams and unrecognised tax
losses will be expired within five years as at 31 December
2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has also not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB68,044,000 (2022:
approximately RMB7,168,000).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
Company’s subsidiary in the PRC from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
difference attributable to the retained profits earned by the
subsidiary in the PRC of approximately RMB20,329,000 (2022:
approximately RMB108,213,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

MR-E-=F+_"A=+—H A&EHE
BARE AT IEEELHARK25719,000
T (ZZEZ=F: AR¥1,115,0007T) 7]
AREERRAMB R =F+=
R=+—H" AR RKFE R TEA -
BERBERMBEBEBINAFRNEER &
WARRBIBBERERBEERIBEE -
NR—ZE_=F+_A=+—H #%&
EMARAUNREREBNARE
68,044,000t (ZEZ—F : H AR
7,168,0007T ) FERIEEFL B E = -

BEFECEMGHE B2TSNF
—A—HBR RARAENPEMNEB A
Fr B B 7 2k /9 A% B 7B BN TEH0FL -
PR A 7N £2 B AT 45 ) BT B 2 RE A B (Bl AR
SRS R NGNS e R S8 I
MERERA TS RER 5P R B A & &
B RIIR B S 749 A R #520,329,0007T (=
T - —F:#4) AR¥108,213,0007T) 3
B E S AR R B R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29, BRA
Number of shares Amount
A& E o]
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-= —E-— —B-= —F-—
t+=A +=HA +=A +=A
Er=F Eg=E Er=[ = =
’000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR THERT TET
Ordinary shares of SREE0.032%E T
HK$0.032 each SRy
Authorised: EE:
At the beginning and at the end A ¥R & B39 &% ik
of the reporting period 1,562,500 1,562,500 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE:
At the beginning of KRR & B4
the reporting period 412,550 302,880 13,201 9,692
Placing of new shares Fig & 57 K
(note) B - 60,570 - 1,938
Exercise of share options 1T IE R - 49,100 - 1,571
412,550 412,550 13,201 13,201
Nominal values of ordinary L EE
shares in RMB (AAREEE) 10,818 10,818
Note: B 5 -
On 16 May 2022, the Group entered into the general mandate placing RZBZZFREA+ B AEBFL 17
agreement pursuant to which the Group had conditionally agreed to —BERELEERE Bt ASEBEGR
place through the placing agent, up to 60,570,000 general mandate Bi5 B AL S IR Al & & £60,570,0000% — %
placing shares, to not less than six places who and whose beneficial BRERERSD TR ANBERA GREA
owners were independent third parties at a price of HK$0.38 per REECERBEBANARBYE=H) &
general mandate placing share. The placing was completed on 1 June B—BERELEERNER RSB T -BEE
2022. EHECR B —F A —BEKe
The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends TRREBATZETHEIRMREE
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per ARAARIRELZA—R—ZENKERE
share at the meeting of the Company. All ordinary share rank B-MBEBRRARNAFGBEEEZS
equally with regard to the Company'’s residual assets. G
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 20283 HEZE T - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 January 2015 for the purpose of
rewarding certain eligible persons for their past contributions
and attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance
with the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
force for a period of ten years commencing on the listing date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
any proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executive
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
directors or proposed director (including non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors) of any of its
subsidiaries; any direct or indirect shareholder of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting. Subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval
of the shareholders in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of the approval by the shareholders in
general meeting; and/or

(i)  grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

3. UESEEZBRERS

ARRRZE—RAF—AZ+=HBEHK
B S ([BERERE]) BT EE
ETEEBALBENER R KB
BUHAEENKRR BEIAKNIBES
MR EBERERE RS Y AEB
KB EEHKKNENHEER AT
LAE At 5 A5 B 1 S I B RE R -
IR BB AR AR T B IR BIAS EL IR BT AR LE SN -
Bl RS E AR +FEM
HIEHE W

BRETINEERSEAREART
S EATAME AR MR 28k
RBEE THRABSSHABE  HE
AMEARNEMNESHEAES (R
BINTESRBIIFRTES) K
R A E AR KB A R R A B & K
BRER: RAR R HEEMMNE QB
ERFEAABERE HER TP EK
B

P17 AR A AR A &) R A BT R
f T 81 5% it 10 FF PRUE T 20 BE 3247 40
EERHUE & {TEBBRERK
FAE L BB BT H10% - 7
AR A B R R AR B
R/ ETRARHRENE BT
KART EFE:

0] BERE A ERE S EREAR
RRKefEEREETRGE®
10% : N,/ 8k

i) MEEFEETNEERZEAR
HHBE10% FRER AV B A A -

BE LXAMRE REBRET SR
ARE BT EAMBRE S DR EER
ARITE AP A BB AR T R 5 T 37T
)L EERoEiS S NES b ERANCIR
iRy B BT A2 F930% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

30.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 30.

(continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within
any 12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of options in
excess of 1% limit shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular
by the Company; and (ii) the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed under
the listing rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, which period may commence
from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends on a
date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant of
the share options subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share
Option Scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0
upon acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days after the
offer date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares on the date of the offer for the grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of a
share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE - E - =F+-_A=+—HIFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS 30. LIERGEEBERERS (&)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the number of shares in respect of RZBEZ=F+ZA=+—H REE
which may be issued upon exercise of share options granted AT EIE R DM ARITE R EREET
and remain outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was B8 A TR ATH AR 1D BB /318,838,000
18,838,000 (2022: 37,768,000), representing 4.6% (2022: M (Z=F = — 4% :37,768,0000% ) ' 16 &
9.2%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. BARQNBE#EITRMNE4.6% (==

F:92%)-°

The following table discloses details of the Company’s TREFEREE BB BERE
share options held by the employees and consultants and ZHBERER:

movements in such holdings:

Number of share options
BRERA

Outstanding
asat
Exercise  Outstanding 3112202
Exercisable price asat and Qutstanding
Gategory of participants Date of grant period per share 11202 Granted Exercised Lapsed 01.01.2023 Lapsed asat 31122023
imt b3
T2
Zt-AR i
ot T
o -B-AH Sqr=f]
S5£EH i 3t HARTR

3
A

Employees of the Group 10.04.2019 10.04.2019 - 10.04.209 0900 18,750,000 - - - 18,750,000 - 18,750,000
rEEER “E-NERATR E-NEMATAZCECASRATH
14.05.2020 14,05.2020 - 13,05.2022 0464 7,572,000 - (7,560,000 (12,000 - - -
“3oEFRATEA C3-EFRATMAE-S--FRATER
08.04.2021 08.04.2021 - 07.04.2023 074 18,930,000 - - - 18,930,000  (18930000) -
“EI-EMANA ZEC-FMAN\RECSC-EMALA
12.06.202 12052022 - 11.05.2024 0462 - 30,288,000 (30,200000) - 86,000 N 88,000

CECCERATCA CE-CERATCRECTMERAT-A

45285000 30288000 (37,760,000) (120000 37,768,000 (18,930,000 18,838,000

Directors of the Group 14.05.2020 14,05.2020 - 13.06.2022 0464 11,358,000 - (11,340,000 (18,000
rEEES CECRERATMA CECEFRATRAECECCfRATCA

56610000 30288000 (49,100,000) (30000) 37,768,000  (18,930,000) 18,838,000

Weighted average exerise price (HKS) 0.701 0.462 0463 0.464 0819 0.464 0.8%8
MEFEARE (R

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 18,930,000 share HE-_ZT--F+-A=+—HLFE"

options were lapsed, no share option was exercised, expired 18,930,00017 & MR #E B 2K 3k AR B AR

or cancelled. T - BBk EE S o

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 49,100,000 share ZE_E__F+_A=1T—HILFE"

options were exercised and 30,000 share options were lapsed. 49,100,00017 & A% #& % 77 {F % 30,0001
RE AR R

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 {27
20234 F 3}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EHZE — &

30.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS TRANSACTIONS

(continueq)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 30,288,000 share
options were granted on 12 May 2022. The estimated fair
value of the option granted was approximately RMB4,419,000.

This fair value was calculated using the binomial option pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

—=F+-A=+—HBItFE

3. UESEEZBRERS (@)

HE_ZT-_F+-A=+—HLFE"
30,288,000 R EN T —_F A A
T ZHEH -MEEBRENGTATE
B4 A ARE4,419,0007T °

A TE T A B A
HoZEAMB BT

12 May 2022

—E—-=

EA+=H
Exercise price (HK$) TEE (Bx) 0.462
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA K 18 (%) 95.301
Contractual life (years) EHER(F) 2
Risk-free rate (%) EREERIE (%) 2.242
Expected dividend yield (%) FEHEREE (%) -

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 2.08
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The Group recognised the total expenses of approximately nil
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately
RMB4,419,000) in relation to the share options granted by the
Company.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE — &

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 17 June 2022, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company - Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Company
Limited and an independent third party entered into the sales
and purchases agreement, to sell 100% equity interest in
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary — Jinjiang Jicheng Light
Industry Co., Ltd., which was engaged in manufacturing
and sales of umbrella parts in PRC, at cash consideration of

31.

e BRRHE

TEF+ A=+ HIEFE

HEMHE 2T

R-ZBE-—FXA+ER -ARAEZHE
BEzEMBRARSKREEXERTBARA
AER—F2BHIE=JFFILEERZE A
HEMZE2EMBRARE IEXNETER

RAFR(RNPEEERENHERET
*B1¢)Z100%HQ$§ ReREBER/RARR
30,000,0007T °

RMB30,000,000.

B A A
—tmARR-

A S A

The disposal of a subsidiary was completed on 24 June 2022.

The net assets of Jinjiang Jicheng Light Industry Co., Ltd. at BISEKETIARAFNEERHZE

the date of disposal were as disclosed below: EFEFHENT:
AREEFTT
Consideration: RE:
Cash received ek 30,000

24/6/2022

=__

ANAZ+MA

RMB’000
ARBTT

REEHEZEERABIT:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 12,182
Right-of use assets FREEE 10,323
Inventories T8 3,430
Trade and other receivables Z 5 & E b fE W GRTE 33,314
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 157
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E b FIE (34,462)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 24,944
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31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) AN, HEMBELTE (&)
RMB’000
AR T T
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMBA Rz W
Consideration received and receivable B ENARE 30,000
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (24,944)
Gain on disposal & W= 5,056
RMB’000
AREET T
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRERAFE:
Cash consideration RERE 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERSRESEFEY (157)
29,843
The consideration of RMB30,000,000 was fully settled during R E AR %30,000,000EREE-Z
the year ended 31 December 2022. T+ A=t HIFEREES-
32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32. BHAEE
Save as disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated financial BREREMBMEEMIT D FTEEEI
statements, the Group also has the following material related AEENTENTERBEB SRS -
party transactions.
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL TEEEASHE
Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and Branfr & B A ek M a1 4R s MR AR B
employees of the Group as set out in note 14 to the REBEIXEERABCASEHESZLE
consolidated financial statements, who are considered as the BYXfvMEIN REBNERAETEE
key management personnel of the Group, the Group did not BABZ A EREAMERFEE-
have any other significant compensations to key management
personnel.
The remuneration of directors and key executives is FEERTENTABZMNESHTFMNEE
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to FEREARBRETSBREERT-

the performance of individuals and market trends.
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 33. RIEZEBHELNAEBYHER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TEREVNAEBEREZDEENEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEE YWEEReRIFREe2EH-
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EREEDELEMNBENEREMNENX
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified ARBEERE WHDEAKEDEANR
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash SEGFERENERBETEMRE TN
flows from financing activities. WEME -

Interest payables  Bank borrowings Total

EAFE BITER B

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

As at 1 January 2022 RZZ-—%—H—H - 77,650 77,650
Financing cash flows mERERE (3,954) (9,550) (13,504)
Non-cash changes: FREEE:
Interest expense recognised BERERFMEZ
(note 10) (FF3E10) 3,954 - 3,954
As at 31 December 2022 and i
as at 1 January 2023 +TZA=+t—HRK
—“E-=F—HF—H - 68,100 68,100
Financing cash flows BERERE (3,045) 5,290 2,245
Non-cash changes: FReEH):
Interest expense recognised B®RNEX
(note 10) (FFzE10) 3,045 - 3,045
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%F
+=A=+-A8 - 73,390 73,390
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 34. XA TN BRI L EES B
OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY =

(A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (A) A2 R BB R

2023 2022
—E_= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Non-current asset kRBEE

Investment in subsidiaries REM B AR 219,132 262,927

Current assets REBEE

Prepayment AT A 174 193

Amounts due from subsidiaries & U BT B A B FRIE 20,596 51,053

Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 168 163
20,938 51,409

Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals expenses and other payables Bt & 3 & H b B~ 28 816 773

Amounts due to subsidiaries LI ENGIE /S 36,679 35,710
37,495 36,483

Net current (liabilities)/assets wE(BE) EERE (16,557) 14,926

Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBER 202,575 277,853

Net assets EEFE 202,575 277,853

Capital and reserves EARRHE

Share capital f& 7 10,818 10,818

Reserves G 191,757 267,035

Total equity B 202,575 277,853

Signed on behalf of the board of directors by: REESFZESE:
Huang Weniji Yang Guang
BEXE BXx
Director Director
o EE

132 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PESERIERAR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE - E - =F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT 34. XA TN BRI L EES B

OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (continued) rR(E)
(B) MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (B) ELTEEHNEE
Translation ~ Share option Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve reserve  Merger reserve losses Total
R& B{AEE Eifife BRERRE AR iR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
As at 1 January 2022 WZE--F-F-H 7,833 135,933 40,716 12,854 229,897 (182,524) 244,709
Loss for the year FREBE - - - - - (9,518) (9,518)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BREHHFHREL L
financial statements ERER - - (171) - - - (171)
Total comprehensive expense FREERTEE
for the year - - (171) - - (9,518) (9,689)
Issue of new shares ESiLils 1,649 17,444 - - - - 19,093
Grant of share options B - - - 4,419 - - 4,419
Exercise of share options T ERE 1,336 24,017 - (6,032) - - 19,321
Lapse of share options BREAR - - - &) - 3 -
As at 31 December 2022 and it St
1 January 2023 +ZA=+-8k
—Z-=F—-f-A 10,818 177,394 40,545 11,238 229,897 (192,039 277,853
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (75,662) (75,662)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ REHHHRELZ
financial statements ERER - - 384 - - - 384
Total comprehensive expense FREERXEE
for the year - - 384 - - (75,662) (75,278)
Lapse of share options BRER - - - (5,218) - 5278 -
As at 31 December 2023 RZBZZ#%
+=A=1+-H 10,818 177,394 40,929 5,960 229,897 (262,423) 202,575
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. MBATZFHE
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, particulars of the = 2%+ =A

subsidiaries of the Company are listed as follows: =+t—H XRAGMBRARFBEET:

Country/place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ date of Class of Proportion of ownership interest and share capital/
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities

ERRIER %/ ERRFERARESER BRTRAE

WEAREH A FriER 85 KRB RE/ZMER  TEEH
2023 2022
== ,

—%_=

Jicheng Umbrella BVI Ordinary 100 100 USD1 Investment holding
Holding Limited
Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited ~ EBE X E TER =T REER
Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
Company Limited
ERREEAERAA Bk AR BT REZR
HK Baohui Industry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$20,000  Dormant
BEEREZERLA EE gl 200008 EEEX
Zenith Century Limited BVI Ordinary 100 100 USD100  Dormant
Zenith Century Limited EBRAHS TER 1005 EEEE
Fujian Jicheng Umbrella PRC Paid up capital 100 100 HK$180,000,000  Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd.* (note) sales of umbrellas
and umbrella
parts
BRENGEBERAR (M)  +HE BRER 180,000,000  BERHEMR
G
* For identification purposes only * EREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE T - =F+ A =+—HIFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Country/place of
incorporation/ date of Class of

35. MBLRZFE (&)

Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held voting power held by the Company
SMRLEAR 0%/ ERRERERERR

il R A4 iR 85

—F—

—F—

Wing Ka Investment BVI Ordinary
Holdings Limited

Wing Ka Investment EERNAES LRk
Holdings Limited

Wing Wing (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary
Industrial Limited

KREBEEERAT Bk LRk

Jinjiang Jingting Trading PRC Paid up capital
Co., Limited* (note)

BIREZSERATA E BRER

(BifzE)

*

For identification purpose only.

Except for Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited, Zenith Century
Limited and Wing Ka Investment Holdings Limited, all other
subsidiaries are indirectly held for the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

Note:

The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March
2024.

%
t

100

100

100

36.

FOREL A
2023
=F

100

100

Proportion of ownership interest and

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital  Principal activities
BERTRAR
BA/ERER FEER

USD10,000  Investment holding
100005  REEK
HK$1,000,000  Investment holding

1,00000087T  ®EER
RMB1,000,000  Sale of umbrellas
and rain gears
AR®1,000000c HEFLRMA
itk

* XYl

REXKREZRBER DA Zenith
Century Limited &2 Wing Ka Investment
Holdings Limited 4h » P75 £ 4t Bt B8 2 &)
HBANEEERE-

B R R4 (AR RS R A A
AR BN EES

tREMBAREEAEHEE B HEM
FXAL/ PRI B E

P& -

i

BRI B A R

HERSHBERER

HAMBHRRXEN_-_ZT_WNF=A
“HNBREEEGHERRETH-
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BB R

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilites A N7 AEBR BE A EHBRFEEHE T
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the ZEZEEUNBENBEHBE  HFkaE T
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out FEHEBIXLGEE P HHRE -

below.

RESULTS ES

For the year ended 31 December
BZ+t-HA=+t—HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—EB-=f —T-C ZZ-—F ZZZTF ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Revenue Yz 294,467 353,048 306,054 344,390 558,599
Gross profit EF 21,392 35,366 26,900 52,795 65,861
Loss before tax BrEiAIEE (92,705) (24,641) (125,182) (31,823) (11,441)
Loss for the year NN 2SN

attributable to owners FEEE

of the Company (92,751) (29,433) (127,729) (34,312) (16,247)

As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—B-=§ -T--4 -T-—F -T-FTF -F-NF

— = —=

—=—=

RMB'000  RVB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT ARBTT AREBTRT AREBTR

Non-current assets FEMBEE 66,485 71,141 101,333 105,238 134,665
Current assets MEBEE 315,575 397,299 349,099 476,371 582,873
Current liabilities mEAaE 142,462 136,313 133,862 154,971 250,407
Non-current liabilities FrRBAaE - 315 364 413 15,031
Net assets EEFE 239,598 331,812 316,206 426,225 452,100
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